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CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel)

8
9

10
11

12

... The Council's Budget and Finance

Committee meeting of March 25th, 2005.

13

For the record we have in attendance the

14

Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Hokama, as well as

15

Members Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina, Johnson,

16

Anderson.

17
18

Excused are Committee Members Mateo and
Carroll.

19
ITEM NO.1:

FY 2006 BUDGET (C.C. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE:

Good morning, Members.

20
21

This morning we have

22

with us the Water Department and the necessary

23

personnel as well as our Budget Director,

24

Corporation Counsel.

25

We're going to be going over the water rates
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1

and basically picking up from where Water Resources

2

Committee ended last Wednesday, Members.

3

There is on your desks a color handout.

4

We're not going to have a visual presentation.

5

We'll, instead, walk through this; and we'll provide

6

the morning time with any additional questions or

7

clarification that's needed to help us with our

8

eventual decision on water rates for the County of

9

Maui.

10

As a note, Members, this afternoon we will be

11

talking with -- or scheduled to talk with the

12

Managing Director EP counts as well as this

13

Department's EP counts.

14

Possibly if we are able to finish early this

15

morning -- and I don't anticipate one way or the

16

other how we're going to go; but if we do, it's

17

possible that we'll have Director Tengan move

18

forward with the discussion on the EP counts as well

19

and we'll ask him to be prepared for that and we'll

20

take a recess prior to engaging in that discussion,

21

if possible.

22
23
24
25

So, thank you very much, Members, for your
attendance this morning.
If you have a cell phone or a pager, at this
time if we can, please, turn it to the off or silent
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1

mode.

We do have public testimony, and I'd like to

2

give a few of the ground rules.

3

minutes with a minute to conclude.

4

know at three minutes so you can take the additional

5

minute to conclude your comments.

6

will jump in if you continue, and we'll ask you to

7

end it up with a sentence or two.

You have three
We'll let you

At four minutes I

8

With that being said, make sure you state

9

your name for the record and if you represent an

10

organization.

11

to testify, Mr. Carl Freedman.

12

Good morning, Mr. Freedman.

13
14

We have one person so far signed up

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.
MR. FREEDMAN:

Good morning, Council Members.

My name is

15

Carl Freedman.

16

just myself as an individual, and I just wanted to

17

make one point about the consideration of the water

18

rate -- proposed water rate increase in the context

19

of looking at the County budget.

20

I'm here testifying on behalf of

And this is just -- maybe this is obvious,

21

but it hasn't been obvious to some people I've

22

talked to.

23

a time when property tax revenues have increased

24

substantially because of increasing property values.

25

So,

You're looking at your overall budget in

the number of people in the County's been
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1

going up.

The amount of County services has been

2

going up.

The revenues for the County have been

3

going way up because the property valuations are

4

increasing.
So,

5

in all of the budget items you're looking

6

at,

7

numbers that is increasing substantially,

8

I've -- from the budget,

9

something in terms of property values.

10

there's a basis you're looking at in the budget
something

some 23 percent or

The -- that is not the case with the Water

11

Department's line items.

12

going up, but there's not any increase in those

13

revenues that takes care of inflation in the way

14

that the other budget items you're looking at are

15

going up.

16

So,

The number of customers is

I just heard the comment, you know,

17

County's thinking of lowering tax rates.

18

they need to increase water rates?

the

Why do

19

And the -- there's just some arithmetic in

20

there that I hope that everybody is aware of that

21

the Water Department revenues,

22

pace with inflation and, most notably,

23

cost of electricity with the oil crisis at $50 a

24

barrel -- I mean,

25

in the revenues that you see with the rest of your

in order to keep the
the increased

there is not a comparable increase
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7

budget.
So,

2

I

just wanted to make that comment since

3

this is the first time we've looked at a water rate

4

increase in the same context as the overall budget.

5

There's -- I

6

difference in the basis for revenues.

7
8

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Freedman.
Members, any questions for Mr. Freedman?

9

10

just want to point out there's a

Hearing none,

thank you very much.

Is there anybody else signed up to testify?

11
12

Members, we're going to keep it open for a little

13

while.

14

MS. SAKAMOTO:

No, Mr. Chair.

.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .

15
16
17

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Let's move forward with the

presentation.
First, I'd like to introduce our Budget

18
19

Director, Ms. Sheri Morrison,

20

direction that they'd like to take us for their

21

presentation.
Good morning, Ms. Morrison.

22
23
24
25

to provide us with the

MS. MORRISON:

Good morning.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

And

good morning, Members.
Today the Committee will, as the Chair said,
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1

talk about the water rate proposal from the

2

Department of Water Supply; and the Department of

3

Water Supply has Director George Tengan here with

4

consultant Ann Hajnosz to discuss that.

5

move to let Mr. Tengan introduce Ms. Hajnosz.

6

MR. TENGAN:

And I will

Mr. Chair, thank you for this opportunity

7

to -- you know, to discuss the proposed rate

8

increase.

9

As you know, Ms. Hajnosz and R. W. Beck has

10

been working on this project with the Stakeholders

11

Committee for over a year; and it's -- so, we've

12

final -- we finally have a proposal that -- to

13

present to the Council for its consideration.
So, with that, I'd like to calion

14

15
16
17

18

Ms. Hajnosz.
MS. HAJNOSZ:

Thank you, Mr. Tengan.

And good morning,

Chair Kane and Committee Members.
I notice that we've got pretty much the same

19

faces as we had last week at the Water Resources

20

Committee meeting; and as you may have noted, the

21

presentation is almost the same from last week.

22

didn't realize that we were going to have such an

23

overlap; but if you maybe bear with me,

24

hearing it again will further clarify any questions

25

that you do have regarding this recommendation.
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The slides go,

just so you're -- we're going

2

to go left to right on the top and then left to

3

right on the bottom just so everybody's sort of

4

following how this goes.

5

So,

I wanted to start with the overall water

6

rate recommendation.

7

increase of 12 percent in water sales revenues.

8

that is going to generate an additional $3.4 million

9

in additional water sales revenues.

10

It is for a system-wide
And

When you look at the various customer classes

11

and how that all breaks down for their various

12

impacts, the general use rate is going to increase

13

about 12.2 percent; and that is, by far,

14

majority of the customers in the County of Maui will

15

see that rate increase.

16

the

Agriculture and non-potable customers will

17

see a decrease -- not a decrease, a slightly lower

18

increase of 7.2 percent and 6.2 percent,

19

respectively.

20

from the stakeholder group that we would like to

21

support agriculture as much as possible.

22

that's why the rate increase for them is a little

23

bit less.

24

into that a little bit more.

25

And this is based on a recommendation

And so,

And we can get in -- we're going to get

Just in general the 12 percent rate increase
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1

can really be split between O&M and capital.

2

need a minimum of 5 percent to cover our O&M and

3

debt service.

4

us to transfer $2 million to the Capital Reserve

5

Fund.

6

whole rate recommendation is about.

7

And we

The additional 7 percent would enable

So, that's sort of,

in a nutshell, what the

The next slide basically just gives you some

8

perspective on the rate increase history for the

9

Department of Water Supply.

And as you can see, in

10

the late '90s, they had some pretty good increases

11

between 4 and 5 percent; but over the last three

12

years there has not been a rate increase.

13

Just for some additional background, what is

14

the Water Board's recommendation for the rate

15

increase?

16

February 24th to recommend the 12 percent rate

17

increase.

18

also called for a comprehensive management audit of

19

the Department of Water Supply and also that the

20

focus is the next rate study be on developing more

21

conservation-oriented rates.

22

The Water Board unanimously voted on

In addition to this recommendation, they

The next page, what is the Mayor's

23

recommendation for the rate increase?

24

also recommended the 12 percent increase in water

25

sales revenues, and he -- they did change their
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1

projection for the Capital Improvement Program from

2

the $25.8 million CIP that was recommended by

3

stakeholders down to the $20.6 million.

4

So, what were the key assumptions used in our

5

rate recommendation?

First, that the number of

6

services will grow at about 2 percent.

7

would grow at approximately 1.5 percent.

Water sales

The reason why there's a difference there is

8
9

typically what you -- what you have are customers

10

that are really living together in terms of ohana

11

housing or you've got various families living

12

together; and then what often happens is, you know,

13

somebody gets married, they split off or they're

14

living with their parents and then they go find an

15

apartment.

16

So, technically water usage isn't going to

17

change that much; but all of a sudden you've got

18

another customer added to the rolls of Department of

19

Water Supply.

20

well.

21

So, we tried to account for that as

Operating expenses are projected to go a

22

little over 4 percent.

23

of focus on the dollar amounts here versus the

24

percentages.

25

going to fund $2 million of the CIP.

And, again, I want to kind

The additional water sales revenue is
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And so, as I mentioned, we have 3.4 million

2

being generated by the rate increase.

3

that would go to the CIP.

4

2 million of

One of the benchmarks that we use in coming

5

up with the rate increase is what our debt serv

6

what should be our debt service coverage which

7

essentially is how much of our net income needs

8

to -- do we need to generate in order to -- to show

9

a 1.25 debt service coverage.

10
11

Okay.

And that's one

of the bases for setting our rates.
I might add that that 1.25 coverage is a

12

relatively low number and that some utilities often

13

plan for 2.0 coverage or greater.

14

And we understand the direction of the

15

Finance Department -- they would like to see that

16

number be higher in future rate -- rate

17

recommendations.

18

high as 1.65 in the future.

19

significant impact on future rates.

So, we could see that number be as
That could have a

20

The other benchmark that we use is the

21

operating fund ending balance target; and typically,

22

again, utilities like to see about 30 to 45 up to 60

23

days of O&M reserve.

24

past kept a pretty healthy reserve, but now under

25

the County they're projecting that their reserve is

And the department has in the
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going to be less.

2

something like nine days of O&M.

3

We -- we've got it down to

So, how is the level of the rate increase

4

tied to the CIP?

5

quite often.

6

increase in terms of not so much a percentage but a

7

dollar figure.

8

Of that, 2 million will be transferred to the

9

Capital Reserve Fund.

10

This is a question that came up

Again, we want to talk about the rate

It's going to generate 3.4 million.

And you can see that breakdown of the 20.6

11

million for the CIP.

5.3 million will be for the

12

Capital Reserve Fund,

9 million for the Water System

13

Development Fee Fund,

8 -- 6.3 to fund the safe

14

drinking water loans.

15

million.

16

That gets you to the 20.6

If the water rate increase was not approved,

17

the first category,

18

have to go down by 2 million to 3.3 million which

19

would then take your whole CIP budget down to 18.6

20

million.

21

increase right there.

22

Okay.

the Capital Reserve Fund, would

That's the impact of the water rate

How was the level of the CIP arrived at?

23

What we did was we took a look at the historical

24

performance of DWS on their CIP projects.

25

that it was lower than what we were projecting.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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And the Stakeholder Committee was well aware

1

2

of this.

We spent a tremendous amount of time

3

talking about how we could reduce that significant

4

backlog of CIP that had been generated over the

5

time.
And this backlog -- we recognize that there

6
7

is a lot of concern over whether or not the

8

Department of Water Supply can accomplish this level

9

of CIP.

This significant backlog was just the

10

actual catalyst for the -- the stakeholders to say

11

we need to do something differently.

12

business as usual.

It can't be

13

Instead of looking at, you know, a rearview

14

mirror, we are looking ahead and want to challenge

15

the department, set the bar higher because we need

16

to get this backlog reduced.

17

attitude that the stakeholders had when they came up

18

with this recommendation for the higher CIP.

19

And that was the exact

As I mentioned earlier, the Mayor's

20

recommendation has reduced that CIP from 25.8 down

21

to the 20.6.

22

Another question that has been coming up has

23

to do with how the rate revenues are related to

24

growth-related CIP.

25

revenues fund growth-related CIP?

So, will these additional rate
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1

no.

2

used to complete renewal and replacement projects

3

that will benefit existing customers.

4

2 million of the 3.4 million, again, would be

And if you go to the previous slide way back

5

there where it breaks out the CIP, you will see that

6

$11.6 million of the 20.6 benefit existing

7

customers.
And so, then, we can turn it around to say,

8
9

well, then how is growth-related CIP funded?

Well,

10

it's primarily funded from the water system

11

development fee revenues.

12

charges -- I think the number is about $6,000 per

13

new five-eighth-inch meter.

14

This is the fee that

The revenues from those fees are estimated to

15

generate about $5 million per year.

16

the balance in that fund will enable the department

17

to complete about $9 million worth of growth-related

18

CIP.

19

And right now

And so, that's how you get the 11.6 for

20

existing 9 million for growth-related CIP for a

21

total of 20.6 million.

22

How is the level of the rate increases tied

23

to DWS' other financial obligations?

We've been

24

talking about capital obligations.

25

of the equation is operating and -- operating and

The other part
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16

maintenance expense and debt service.
We have calculated that a minimum of

3

5 percent rate increase is needed to cover projected

4

O&M and debt service obligations.

5

scenario, there would be no transfer to the Capital

6

Reserve Fund.

7

anticipating for -- to fund CIP would not happen.

8

And as a result, you would have to decrease your

9

capital budget by 2 million.

10

Under this

So, there's $2 million that we were

Another issue has to do with how the proposed

11

rates will encourage conservation.

12

rate structure is a very conservation wage and rate

13

structure.

14

three-block inverted rate structure, which means as

15

you use more water, it costs more money.

16

The existing

It's a three-block inverted --

The problem with it is that the current rate

17

structure is applied to a very broad customer base

18

that has various usage characteristics.

19

what we would like to do is to be able to split up

20

that general use category into at least single

21

family customers.

22

How are the proposed rates for ag?

And so,

As I

23

mentioned earlier, the stakeholders voted to

24

increase the support of ag customers; and the way

25

they did that was by saying that instead of getting
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1

a 12 percent across-the-board increase, ag will get

2

only a 7.2 percent increase which translates into a

3

6.2 increase for non-potable,

4

on some rate structure different -- differentials.

5

How will the proposed rates address

just -- that's based

6

affordability issues?

This is also a concern of a

7

lot of people.

8

at the lifeline usage of 10,000 gallons per

9

bimonthly period.

We are maintaining the first block

And the -- a typical industry

10

usage is 5,000 gallons per month for basic sanitary

11

service.

12

So, it was -- so, we do not -- we're

13

maintaining the first block rate at the existing

14

rate levels; and right now it's at $1.42.

15

rate's going to stay the same.

16

That

For customers that are using 30,000 gallons

17

per bimonthly period or less will see less than the

18

12 percent increase overall.

19

Okay.

So, while the system -- only our

20

system increase is 12 percent, we really tried to

21

shield the -- you know, the typical usage of about

22

30,000 gallons per bimonthly period.

23

something less than a 12 percent increase.

24
25

They will see

And then the next two slides basically show
you a summary of what the rates will be.
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1

proposing service charge increases from -- for a

2

five-eighth-inch meter from 5.60 to 6.50.

3

On the right-hand side you can see what the

4

proposed rates are for the usage portion of the

5

water bill, highlighting again that the first block

6

stays the same, second block -- third block will

7

increase slightly.

8

9

Okay.

And then on the very last page we've

got some typical bill impacts that I believe you all

10

have seen as well.

11

five-eighth-inch meter customer that's using 9,000

12

gallons on a bimonthly basis -- and this would be a

13

customer that, again, is using the minimum sanitary

14

needs for water -- would see just a 7.5 percent

15

increase in their rates, so, a $1.80 over a

16

two-month period or 90 cents per month.

17

You can see that if --

Where a typical customer using 30,000 gallons

18

at a bimonthly period would see a $7 increase or

19

3.50 per month which translates to about a 10.7

20

percent increase.

21

The next slide shows a comparison of the

22

bimonthly residential utility charges for the

23

different counties as a whole.

24
25

And with the proposed rate increase, Maui
county will still be below the three-county average.
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1

As far as where they are, I think Honolulu is still

2

the lowest and Kauai and Maui might be about the

3

same.

4

the highest water rates in the State.

5

Big Island is still the highest -- still has

And so, in summary, the rate recommendation

6

really fulfills five goals that we can see.

No.1,

7

and the most important, rates are always designed to

8

provide self-sufficiency for the utility.

9

what we're really talking about are rates that are

And so,

10

going to ensure that the Department of Water Supply

11

can cover its operating, maintenance and debt

12

service obligations.

13

Second, just as important, we need to provide

14

a constant stream of funds to fund renewal and

15

replacement as well as growth-related capital.

16

The rate recommendation supports a higher

17

level of CIP than historically has been completed,

18

and we just feel that this is sort of a catalyst

19

that needs to drive the department to work

20

differently and accomplish a higher level of CIP.

21

It -- it continues to provide support to

22

agri -- agriculture customers, and it afford

23

addresses affordability issues on a limited basis.

24

In summary, the rate recommendation includes

25

a recommendation to investigate the moving toward a
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1

more customer class base wage structure.

2

what we're doing right now.

3

preliminary data to help us try to put more

4

stratification in that general use category.

5

hoping to at least be able to carve out single

6

family customers, and design a rate structure

7

specifically for the single family customer.

8
9
10

And with that,
CHAIR KANE:

That's

We are looking at

We're

I'm open for questions.

Thank you, Ms. Hajnosz.

Any additional

comments from you, Mr. Tengan?

11

MR. TENGAN:

No, Mr. Chair.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members, at this point before I

13

recognize you for Q and A,

14

audience that has not testified that would like to

15

testify at this time?

16

close public testimonies prior to our discussion.

17

Anybody?

is there anybody in the

The Chair does intend to

Hearing none, Members, without objections,

18

19

we'll go ahead and close public testimony for this

20

morning.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you.

Close it up.

Okay.

The floor is open, Members,

for

24

questions to Ms. Hajnosz or to Director Tengan.

25

questions?

Mr. Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you

for that overview.
In regards to the CIP, the Mayor now

3

4

recommends a $20.6 million CIP.

5

regards to the CIP that was projected at 25.8?

6

did we take out?

7

department in, you know, meeting their goals going

8

forward?

9
10

MR. TENGAN:

What was reduced in
What

And would that hamper the

Mr. Chair, I'll have Holly go over what was

cut in the CIP budget if

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MS. PERDIDO:

Mr. Moto, you can join us, Mr. Moto.
Mr. Chair, basically what was cut from

13

the -- what was presented to the Mayor was all the

14

bond-related projects.

15

have them in front of me but -- if you need me to go

16

through detail; but if you look at any of the

17

projects that were going to be funded by bonds or --

18

well, what we had said was borrowing from the

19

County, those projects were basically cut.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

If you need me to -- I don't

So, those projects that are

21

being cut, I know we -- in the first meeting that we

22

had couple of weeks ago, you know, we talked about

23

an aggressive CIP to make sure that going forward

24

that we meet the public needs in regards to -- and

25

the department needs in regards to delivering water.
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1

With the reduction, will that hamper the department

2

in achieving those goals?

3

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, as far as those projects are

4

concerned,

5

Director before this finalized; and it seemed as

6

though that the Administration had to find a way to

7

reduce any projects that were proposed to be funded

8

with bonds for whatever reason that the Finance

9

Department and the Budget Officer had.

10

I had a discussion with the former Budget

And I didn't feel that it was in my place to

11

argue that -- you know,

12

condition of the County as it relates to bonds; and

13

so, I yielded on that to the -- to the Finance

14

Director.

15

to argue the financial

As far as, you know,

the impact of reducing

16

the CIP, obviously it's going to affect the level of

17

services we can provide to the pUblic; but it's

18

something that was -- you know, a decision that was

19

made above me.

20

need -- we'll just go along with that for now.

21

And, you know,

I need to -- well, we

If there's an urgent need for a bond-related

22

project, then we would need to find some other way

23

to fund that project.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

And the other

question that I had -- one of the things that
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1

we're -- we noted was that for estimated revenue of

2

$5 million per year based on growth, how was that

3

$5 million derived?

4

MS. PERDIDO:

The $5 million was derived as just an

5

estimate, what we've been collecting over the last,

6

I would say, two years, basically since the water

7

system development fee was increased.

8

just an estimate of how much we've been collecting

9

and we expect to collect.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14
15

Thank you.

Right.

So, that's

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Molina?
Yeah, thank you very much, Chair.

Oh, excuse me, Mr. Molina.

I'm sorry.

Mr. Tengan, do you have additional comments to
MR. TENGAN:

Sir, I'd just like to make a statement for

16

clarification in that the water system development

17

fee and its -- and our expected revenue from those

18

fees have really nothing to do with this proposed

19

rate increase.

20

So, we shouldn't confuse funding of projects by the

21

water system development fee with the proposed

22

increase.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

It's still separate funding issues.

Mr. Molina, go ahead.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Ms. Hajnosz and Mr. Tengan.
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1

I guess I'll start my first line of

2

questioning with the concept of conservation.

3

Looking at the customer class base rates, it does

4

promote conservation which is definitely

5

appreciated.
What is the time line, I guess, at this point

6
7

for the department to implement these new rate

8

structures?

9

Committee goes ahead and approves these rate

I guess, assuming it -- the Budget

10

increases, how soon would these rate structures be

11

put in place?

12

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, the Stakeholders Committee or

13

members of the Stakeholders Committee -- I believe

14

most of them have or intend to commit another year

15

of voluntary work to review the rates.

16

the things that they wanted to do was to establish

17

customer classes.

18

decided that they would want to look at establishing

19

rates for single family residential usage.

And one of

And at yesterday's meeting it was

20

We are working on that data, and we hope to

21

ex -- or we expect to have sufficient data for the

22

Committee to review and to make a proposal as to how

23

that class should be treated or -- in -- as far as

24

the rates are concerned.

25

ready for Council by this time next year for

And we expect to have that
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implementation in the 2007 fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And being at the

3

Stakeholders Committee, there was a memo,

I believe,

4

from mid-December, 2004.

5

customers that have the five-inch

6

five-eighth-inch water meters are utilizing, you

7

know, at least 50 percent more water than the

8

neighbor islands.

I guess it reflected that

What are the neighbor islands doing

9

10

differently from what here in Maui County could do

11

to, I guess, cut down on the amount of water usage

12

by people with these size meters?

13

mean, are they doing anything differently from us

14

here in Maui County?

15

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Any comments?

I

You know, the only thing that we could tell

16

that there -- that was a real big difference was the

17

size of the properties and the location of these

18

larger properties being sort of in the dry side of

19

the island.

20

And I know in Kona, you know,

there are

21

pretty big properties; and it's dry over there, too,

22

but you have a balance of the Hilo side, you know,

23

where there's a lot of rain.

24

just -- you know, it just seemed like in the County

25

of Maui the usage was so much higher but was really

And so,
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1

the -- it was hard to determine where we thought,

2

well, maybe -- maybe, you know, you got not as many

3

users in Kona, you know.

4

And the Big Island has a very, very

5

conservation oriented rate structure.

6

steep.

7

block is over $4 per thousand gallons.

8

so, we have a pretty aggressive rate structure on

9

the Big Island.

10

It's very

The blocks go up to -- I think the fourth

Honolulu, of course,

1S

You know,

much denser, you

11

know.

So, you got smaller lots and, you know, a lot

12

of people and multi-family and that sort of thing.

13

So,

14

lower average usage.

just by that nature you've got, you know, much

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

MS. HAJNOSZ:

17

In Kauai you just don't have as many big

properties, I don't think.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

MS. HAJNOSZ:

20
21

Uh-huh.

That was just my sense.

Uh-huh.

Not as many big resort areas, things like

that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And as it relates to Maui County,

22

what region uses the most water, I guess, the areas

23

that have these five-eighth-inch water meters?

24

Would there be --

25

MS. HAJNOSZ:

You know, I don't know offhand.
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1

we've got it in our report where we did a district

2

analysis.

Let me try and get that number.

3

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

4

MS. HAJNOSZ:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

MS. HAJNOSZ:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

MR. TENGAN:

9

MS. HAJNOSZ:

10

MR. TENGAN:

Wailea, South Kihei.

You know, I could get back to you on that.
Yeah, yeah, there's no --

It's in the report.
no rush.

Mr.
We did look at that.
Mr. Chair, my recollection it's the South

11

Maui -- I mean, South Kihei and the Wailea area

12

that, I believe, as a group uses the most water per

13

meter.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Question, Mr. Chairman, you

15

know, the rate study promotes a real aggressive CIP

16

effort; and over five years you're looking at

17

roughly 30 percent.

18

exactly all these expenditures will provide to the

19

County over the long term?

20

Can you basically tell me what

And I guess for us what we hear from people

21

on the street is we don't mind paying a rate

22

increase, but what are we going to get out of this

23

over the long term?

24

MS. HAJNOSZ:

25

MR. MOLINA:

Uh-huh.
Can you share your comments with that?
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1

Because generally the -- we're going to be the guys

2

that they're going to come to.

3

right now we may not be seeing people out here -- a

4

large majority of the people expressing their

5

concerns.

6

their water bill, then we may hear it.

7

MR. TENGAN:

And it's funny,

It's only after when they start getting

Mr. Chair, again, I -- we need to -- we need

8

to set aside those projects that would be funded

9

with the water system development fee.

These

10

projects are primarily for expansion and to

11

accommodate new services.

12

So, we need to focus on what it will provide

13

to existing customers.

14

earlier, this rate in -- what those rate increase

15

will provide an additional $2 million for our

16

replacement projects.

17

As you know,

And as Ann mentioned

there's a lot of -- there are

18

pipes in our system that are quite inadequate,

19

especially in providing fire protection, especially

20

in the Upcountry area where,

21

systems were originally designed and built to

22

accommodate agricultural or rural needs; but as this

23

area becomes more urbanized with all the

24

subdivisions that are taking place up there,

25

protection becomes quite inadequate with the number

in my mind,
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1

of homes up there and the fire flow requirements.

2

In other words, the pipes are too small to handle or

3

to provide adequate fire protection.

4

And these are the kind of -- this is the

5

primary benefit, in my mind,

6

existing customers.

7
8
9
10
11
12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So, in short, better service

over the long term for the customer?
MR. TENGAN:

That's correct.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

All right.

Thank you.

Thank you,

Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Ms. Hajnosz, additional comments?

13

14

Okay.

that it will provide to

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Mr. Chair, I just would like to get back to

15

Mr. Molina.

Councilman Tavares has pointed out in

16

our report we do have a table in our -- one of our

17

appendices that shows that the monthly use per

18

customer based on Fiscal Year 2003 data, when you

19

compare the different districts, was highest in West

20

Maui, Lahaina, okay, followed by Central.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

MS. HAJNOSZ:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson?

With regard to the ag rates,

Ms. Hajnosz, how will you make a determination as to
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1

who is going to get that rate?

2

because of the type of line that's in

3

installed or is it because of the actual use?

4
5

6

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Is it specifically
you know,

I think I'm going to defer that question to

the Director.
MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, with regard to -- as to who

7

qualifies for ag rates, it's spelled out in the

8

in our rules that,

9

be zoned ago

first of all, the property has to

And secondly their -- the use of that

10

property has to be ag usage.

11

for that rate would need to show proof of income

12

from ag -- from agricultural activities.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

The person applying

And is there any threshold,

14

Mr. Tengan, for that income?

15

some people may have -- you know, let's say they're

16

growing trees and they take a while to mature.

17

how would you, I guess, you know, set that threshold

18

for income?

19

MR. TENGAN:

Because, you know,

Mr. Chair, we don't have any thresholds as

20

far as,

21

person applying for that rate.

22

site inspection to see that, in fact,

23

agricultural activity is taking place on the

24

property.

25

So,

let's say, the percentage of income for the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

However, we do do a
some

So, if -- let's say you're
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1

a homeowner and you've put in a few banana trees.

2

Would that qualify as agriculture?

3

MR. TENGAN:

First of all, you would need to show that

4

your land is zoned ago

5

present to the department your gross ln

6

income tax returns or the GET returns.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

MR. TENGAN:

9

Secondly you would need to
gross

Uh-huh.

Basically that would be it.

And for the

Committee's information, the Administration is

10

working with an advisory group. I forget what the

11

advisory group is called but it deals with

12

agriculture on Maui and they're looking at defining

13

what an ag customer is.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Have you ever made any attempt,

15

Mr. Tengan, or looked at, I guess, the

16

possibility

17

residence on the property.

18

second residence now is not really for farm workers.

19

It's supposed to be by HRS 205 but it's not,

20

unfortunately, and there's no enforcement.

21

because let's say you have a

If that family,

And in many cases the

let's say, is just living on

22

the property, maybe has a small little garden but

23

they've got a swimming pool.

24

couple of residences.

25

on the property that, you know, in some respect

They have, you know, a

They've got other activities
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1

maybe they do get a small income from their truck

2

farm or whatever.

3

that percentage or looking at what is actually

4

attributable to residential use and, you know, the

5

non-agricultural use as opposed to what are you

6

actually using to,

7

MR. TENGAN:

Have you thought about splitting

I guess, water your crops with?

Mr. Chair, I don't believe that we have had

8

any discussions in this particular area; but as I

9

stated earlier, the Mayor's committee on agriculture

10

is looking at trying to come up with a definition as

11

to who is actually a farmer or, you know, a

12

livestock grower that would qualify for agricultural

13

rates.

14

As I stated earlier, for now,

the only

15

criteria we have is that the land be zoned ag and

16

that some income be produced by those ag activities.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I guess a suggestion that I

18

might have -- and I don't know if it's possible or

19

not -- because some people who live on ag land --

20

and they do have some type of farming activity,

21

let's say, even if they have cattle or whatever it

22

happens to be.

23

let's say the percentage of the footprint or

24

whatever it is in terms of their actual agricultural

25

use of that portion of their property, the same way

Have you ever thought of just
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1

that they kind of do it on the real property where

2

they say, well, okay, we're taxing your land at a

3

certain rate because you're using that for

4

agriculture; but where your house is, that's the

5

residential.

6

percentage basis so that they would have to pay the

7

higher rate on their residential use and then pay

8

the lower rate on the ag water use?

9

MR. TENGAN:

Yes.

If you could use some type of a

Mr. Chair, to a certain extent, the

10

existing rates and the proposed rates will take care

11

of some of that concern.
As was mentioned by Ann, the first 5,000

12
13

gallons per month is charged at the low rate.

14

there's another block that goes from 5,000 gallons

15

up to 25,000 gallons; but that's for bimonthly

16

billing period, I believe, yeah?

17

MS. HAJNOSZ:

18

MR. TENGAN:

Then

10 to 25.
Then beyond that, you know, you enter the

19

third block; and that third block for the general

20

user would be the higher rate.

21

user,

22

25,000 gallons per billing period, to that extent,

23

that concern is addressed.

24
25

However, for the ag

it would be at that ag rate.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
saying,

Yeah.

So, up to the

And I guess what I'm

though, is -- maybe I'm looking at it
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differently than you are.

2

let's say you've got somebody that has maybe a

3

hydroponic farm and they have very intensive use of

4

water or maybe you have somebody that has a crop

5

that has an extremely intensive use of water.

6

is going to determine their water usage overall.

7

And maybe they have a real small home.

8
9

What I'm saying is that

That

So, what I'm getting at is is there any way
to actually examine, you know, the physical

10

operation and come up with a fair basis on which you

11

could actually determine, even if they had -- and I

12

don't know,

13

split off what they're actually using for irrigation

14

versus what they're using for their dwelling or, you

15

know, other swimming pool or whatever they have.

16

MR. TENGAN:

I mean, even dual metering where they

Mr. Chair,

frankly we -- you know,

I haven't

17

had any personal thoughts in that area as far as

18

dual metering is concerned.

19

occur with the larger users of water like the

20

hotels.

21

They'll

Dual metering does

they'll -- if they have an

22

irrigation system that's using our water,

23

put in another meter for irrigation purposes.

24

the primary purpose for that would be so that

25

these -- these operations don't get charged for the
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sewer charges.

2

But as far as, you know, monitoring

3

individual homes or individual properties, that

4

would require a lot of staff time and effort.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

clock

Well -- and the only reason I'm --

I'm sorry, Member Johnson -Yeah.

-- before you go any further -Sure.

the Chair prefers that we -- we're on a

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Right.

-- first of all.
Right.

So, I'm hoping that we can narrow our

16

discussion down to the water rate study, the

17

information that's provided for us to help us make a

18

decision at some point within the next couple of

19

weeks on what are we going to decide.

20

Your discussion is important; but it may

21

start reaching into the realm of policy discussion,

22

something that may be more appropriate within Member

23

Anderson's Committee to have those discussions about

24

future studies or options that were going to be made

25

available at some point in time.
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So, I'm just pointing that out to you that

2

the Chair's aware of the importance of your

3

discussion; but it -- I'd like to -- us to narrow it

4

back down into the presentation that was given and

5

help us move forward on that discussion,

6

Ms. Johnson.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah.

And the primary reason I'm

8

asking the question is because when we're looking at

9

the equity in the actual establishment of the rates,

10

it -- it is basically structured in a way that it's

11

a use classification.

12

use, if you're tying the actual rate to the real

13

use, I want to be able to know that the people who

14

are paying those specific rates are actually the

15

ones that are utilizing, you know, those services in

16

that classification.

17

And so, when you look at the

Because, otherwise, Mr. Chair, what occurs is

18

you have a cost shifting which then goes on to, you

19

know, other users who, for whatever reason, you

20

know, don't -- let's say they have an identical use;

21

but they're getting penalized because they're paying

22

a higher rate now.

23

So, what I'm looking at in my determination

24

of looking at these rates, I want to make sure that

25

the people who get a rate increase -- or who get a
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rate benefit are generally entitled to that benefit.

2

So, that's why it's important to me to kind

3

of at least explore what have you done in looking at

4

those rates in establishing a fairness and an

5

equitable,

6

one classification gets unfairly burdened by picking

7

up the rate for someone else.

8

going with that.

9

CHAIR KANE:

I guess, system for everyone so that no

So, that's where I'm

And the Chair recognizes that.

And, again, I

10

reiterate that I know what you're talking about is

11

very important.

12

to you a couple of times on how they do view it.

13

And I think your discussion was starting to lead

14

into potential issues later on in the future; and

15

that's why I wanted to interject.

16

very respectful.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

CHAIR KANE:

I think the Director has responded

And, again, it's

Yeah.

I just want to make sure that everybody has

19

an option to focus in -- on what we have before us

20

today.

21
22
23

So, that's where the Chair is coming from as
well.

please continue with your line.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Sure.

I -- and one of the things,

24

Mr. Tengan, that I would be looking at would be -- I

25

guess, when you're establishing these billings and
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1

when you're establishing who gets charged what

2

within the billing structure, do you have sufficient

3

staff in place -- you know, because obviously part

4

of this is going to go for your operations budget or

5

the majority of this money will go for operations.

6

Is there sufficient staffing in place with

7

the budget established the way that it is and the

8

rates set the way they are to actually address some

9

of these issues with regard to conservation,

10

specific use, you know, looking at -- you know, even

11

working with people on conservation?

12

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, the -- the budget that's before

13

the Council today does include staffing for our

14

conservation programs.

15

know, it's being addressed.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

CHAIR KANE:

from the Members?

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

Further questions

Ms. Anderson?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Tengan, you mentioned that South
Maui/Wailea area uses the most water per meter.

22

MS. JOHNSON:

23

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

18

20

Okay.

So, in that regard, you

It's West Maui actually.
West Maui.

It was re -- Member Anderson, it was

reiterated by the graph that was provided by Member
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1

Tavares to Ms. Hajnosz that West Maui and then

2

Central are actually the two regions that have the

3

highest water use.

4

the information from the Director.

5
6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
totals.
CHAIR KANE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

I'm not talking about general

I'm talking about the most use per meter.

7

9

So, she stated that right after

Okay.

Proceed with your questions.
Can you give me what that figure

is bimonthly for a comparison here?
MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, we don't have that information

11

here with us today; but I do believe in our annual

12

reports we do break out the consumption by

13

districts, right?

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could we get that information

15

provided and also the average bimonthly or -- I

16

guess average is a good-enough term, maybe the

17

typical hotel consumption per hotel or per meter,

18

however they deliver it.

19

CHAIR KANE:

We'll have that question developed and sent

20

to the department.

21

that information in current reports that we get

22

access to, we'll go ahead and move forward with that

23

question.

If staff is unable to obtain

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions?

Thank you.
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1

recognizing Mr. Pontanilla, is there any other

2

member that has any questions?

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

6

morning.

7

Chairman?

Yes, Mr. Mateo.
Chairman, thank you very much.

Good

Mr. Director, the 12 percent increase will

8

generate over $3 million.

In addition to the $3

9

million, there's the 25,000 being recommended for an

10

annual CIP.

11

be part of meeting some of the CIP needs?

12

maintenance would also be part of that CIP.

13

MR. TENGAN:

Is that 3 million part of -- going to
Because

Mr. Chair, as Ann previously mentioned, the

14

proposed rate increase supposedly generate or should

15

generate about $3.4 million in additional revenues,

16

$2 million of which will be transferred to the CIP

17

Reserve Fund to fund our replacement projects.

18
19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
in her handout.

20

Yeah, thank you.

I read that part

Thank you very much, Mr. Director.

So, the question is real simple.

How far are

21

we behind monetarily?

22

that your department deems priority, how far are we

23

back?

24

MR. TENGAN:

25

To do -- to do the projects

Mr. Chair, the question might be very simple;

but the answer is very difficult.

You know, we need
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1

to project what we can do on an annual basis and

2

project it over, you know, the coming years.
We

3

- as I recall, our Planning Division has

4

a CIP plan laid out for the next 15 or 20 years.

5

And so, it would be very difficult to establish in

6

today's dollars how much we would need today to

7

accomplish all these projects when we're ready to

8

take care of them.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Well, I guess just, you know,

10

speaking for myself, Mr. Director, it's kind of

11

difficult for me to, you know, like accept that

12

that statement only because you're asking for an

13

increase based on the need; and, yet, you're not

14

identifying what the department's need is.

15
16

17
18
19
20

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, we do have that need identified in

the current year's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yeah, I'll pass, Mr. Chair.

Thank

you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.
Before I recognize you, Mr. Pontanilla, I

21

just wanted to follow up on your original question,

22

if I may.

23

Thank you.

And I believe, Ms. Hajnosz, if you can

24

help -- help me understand because the proposal was

25

for 20 -- the -- well, first,

let's back up.
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percent increase,

is there any correlation of that

2

12 percent increase to the original $25.8 million

3

CIP approach?

4

And I ask that because now that the Mayor has

5

proposed a $20.6 million budget instead and, yet, it

6

seems in your comments that the 12 percent is still

7

necessary, there seems to be no correlation between

8

the two, the CIP of 25.8 and the 12 percent

9

increase.

10

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Can you explain that further, please?

Yes, Mr. Chair, I'd be happy to because I

11

understand it is a very complex situation; and it's

12

a question that we get often.

13

I think I'm going to -- probably the easiest

14

way is to direct your attention to the second page

15

of the handout to the slide in the far left --

16

bottom left-hand corner where it says, how is the

17

level of the rate increase tied to the level of the

18

Fiscal Year 2006 CIP?

19

Is everybody on that page?

Okay.

Great.

20

That basically lays out how the CIP that's been

21

proposed by the Mayor is funded, with the Capital

22

Reserve Fund being funded by $5.3 million.

23

As I mentioned before, without the 12 percent

24

rate increase, that number will drop to $3.3

25

million.

So, regardless of whether your total CIP
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1

is 25.8 or 20.6, you'll essentially have $2 million

2

less if a 12 percent rate increase is not passed.

3

And that's from a funding standpoint.

4

You would essentially need to fund -- you

5

know,

6

if you wanted to fund up to the 20.6 level.

7

would need to find an additional, what, 7.2 million

8

if you -- you know, if we wanted to fund up to the

9

25.8 million.

10

find a source for that additional $2 million
You

And so, once the option for bonding no longer

11

existed, that was when we had -- you know, they had

12

to look at what were our available funds.

13

we went with the safe drinking water loan projects

14

that were available to be, you know, moved up,

15

essentially.

16

that's how the safe drinking water loans came into

17

the picture.

And then

I think that was about a year.

So,

18

And so, you know, people have to realize that

19

when we're talking about the 12 percent, again, it's

20

easiest to focus on a number like $2 million because

21

that's what the CIP -- that's what it's going to

22

generate for the CIP, $2 million.

23

The CIP total is ten times that much,

24

million.

So, how do we fund the rest of it?

25

other sources, right?

Does that help?
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CHAIR KANE:

Just a little because the other -- I guess

2

the other tie-in comes to the question that in my

3

mind has not been answered; and it seems to be

4

my perception of it is that it's not being answered,

5

it's being evaded.

6

And that is

tied in to your comment about,

7

we don't want to look in the rearview mirror, we

8

want to look forward, however, I think this

9

body's -- again, I'll speak for myself.

10

or

Let me back

up.

11

My concern is that the past performance of

12

the department has not shown that they were able to

13

do anything -- at what's being requested, whether

14

it's the 25.8 million, whether it's the 20.6 million

15

or even if it were to be an 18.6 million, really the

16

department has not demonstrated their ability to

17

perform and achieve those goals.

18

MS. HAJNOSZ:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

So, if

if they haven't demonstrated that,

what makes us think

21

MS. HAJNOSZ:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MS. HAJNOSZ:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Uh-huh.

Uh-huh.
-- or what is going to justify -Right.
-- us supporting this type of aggressive

approach until we clean our house or make sure that
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the house is able to do the work?
MS. HAJNOSZ:

Right.

Mr. Chair, the stakeholders debated

3

this issue for about three or four months over the

4

last year.

5

side of we need to change things in the department

6

in order for us to accomplish this level of CIP with

7

the full recognition that staffing is a big issue,

8

but we can't always just be saying that we don't

9

have enough staff so we can't do the CIP.

And what they have come down on is the

10

I think there's a recognition by the

11

department that they need to do things differently,

12

and the stakeholders have recommended and the board

13

has also recommended that a -- and I'll -- you know,

14

a performance review be undertaken to enable the

15

department to find a way to do this higher level of

16

CIP.

17

And so, there's a full recognition that

18

there's, you know, the big unknown.

19

time, I want to remind everyone the department has

20

at times been able to perform at a higher level in

21

the last -- between, oh, I think, probably June of

22

2004 and December, they encumbered close to 12 --

23

$13 million in CIP projects over that six,

24

seven-month time period working extremely hard to

25

get that done.

At the same
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1

And I -- as I mentioned before, encumbering a

2

certain level of CIP, while it's definitely tied to

3

the way you work and the number of people that are

4

working, it's also tied to the complexity of the

5

project, the size of the project, the number of

6

projects where very many issues that go into whether

7

or not you can encumber at a certain level -- and

8

you're certainly not going to encumber at the same

9

pace on a monthly basis.

You know, that -- I think

10

that

11

demonstrate the department could do it when it

12

needed to.

13

CHAIR KANE:

that six-month stretch really did

I'll -- then I would only come -- my only

14

come-back to that

15

Mr. Pontanilla

16

sustain ability, though?

17

there's a spike on the -- on the graph; but can they

18

sustain that and come back for next fiscal year with

19

an additional --

20

MS. HAJNOSZ:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

MS. HAJNOSZ:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

and then I'll recognize

- is that is that demonstrating
I mean, so, for six months

Uh-huh.
-- $20.6 million?
Right.
And that's really -- because historically it

hasn't been demonstrated that they can do so.
MS. HAJNOSZ:

Right.
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CHAIR KANE:

So, anyway,

2

open-ended.

3

you,

4

that -- I ' l l leave that

And, Mr. Pontanilla, I ' l l recognize

sir.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

This is in regards to Member Anderson's

5
6

request.

7

identified by,

8

as separate or Wailuku, Ka -- or Central Maui

9

itself?

10

MR. TENGAN:

When you said district, is a district
like,

say, Wailuku, Kahului, Kihei,

Mr. Chair, we have districts broken -- broken

11

up into various ways based upon that data that we're

12

dealing with.

13

If we -- if we're talking about water systems

14

and how we handle the water systems, within the

15

engineering division we have the East Maui district,

16

the Upcountry district,

17

includes Kahului, Wailuku, Kihei, Wailea and Makena.

18

We have the West Maui district, and we also had

19

Molokai.

20

the Central district which

When we break down data as to consumption and

21

revenues broken down more specifically, I believe

22

our annual reports will show the breakdown to

23

include -- for Central Maui, we would have breakdown

24

for Kahului, Wailuku, Paia, Kihei or -- and I

25

don't -- I'm not sure whether it goes in further by
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1

including or having -- showing a breakdown for

2

Wailea and Makena; but basically we -- we have the

3

East Maui district,

4

district, West Maui and Molokai.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

the Upcountry district, Central

Thank you.

Well, what I would

6

like to see is a breakdown for Central, Paia,

7

Wailuku, Kahului,

like you mentioned --

8

MR. TENGAN:

Uh-huh.

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

-- Kihei as well as, if you

10

have it, Wailea, Makena.

11

you know, me or -- the rest of the Council an idea

12

for the Central Maui distribution.

13
14
15

16

MR. TENGAN:

That would give, at least,

Mr. Chair, if I may, for clarification, is it

total consumption that you're looking it?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Well, the usage for those

different areas' consumption.

17

MR. TENGAN:

By meter or by area?

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

MR. TENGAN:

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

By the area.

Okay.
The other question that I

21

had -- and it kind of ties into what the Chairman

22

was talking about regarding the difference between

23

25.8 and $20.6 million.

24
25

Previously you guys -- you provided, you
know, a pie chart in regards to how the moneys are
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1

going to be spent; and if we could have an update as

2

far as, you know, how much money will be spent for

3

treatment, transmission source, distribution

4

facilities as well as storage, that would kind of at

5

least let us know where the moneys are being spent.
And the other chart that showed the projected

6

7

CIP by funding source, you know, how, you know,

8

money is going to be divvied up for those projects

9

that now is being

10

being requested.
Thank you, Chair.

11
12

funding of $20.6 million is

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Pontani11a.
Questions, Members?

13

The Chair's going to

14

jump in just to follow up again on Mr. Pontanilla's

15

line of questioning.

It's kind of a variable.

The $5.2 million in bond projects that was

16
17

cut from the department's proposal to the Mayor, is

18

that being recognized in the six-year CIP prop --

19

anticipation of future projects?

20

it being showing up anywhere in this year's budget

21

as

Has it been -- is

from 2007 through 2011?

22

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, I -- I'd have to check into that.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

24
25

We -- we'd like to get a response to

that as well, please, if we can.
Staff, if we can make sure that we follow up
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with that.

Since we are made aware of that the

2

request was to fulfill the 25.8 and then the $5.2

3

million in bond projects, is it being recognized

4

anywhere?
And then also, just following up with

5
6

Mr. Pontanilla's line of questioning, from 20.6 to

7

18.6, that $2 million, if the body were not to look

8

at -- if they were to look at the minimum 5 percent

9

that you point out in the later slide -- so, the

10

Capital Reserve Fund would be 5.3.

11

3.3.

It would go to

I think your statement, Ms. Hajnosz,

12
13

earlier -- and so, I'm just asking for

14

clarification -- is that the CRF is used for

15

existing; the water system development fee is used

16

for new?

17

MS. HAJNOSZ:

18

CHAIR KANE:

Uh-huh.
And then the safe drinking water loans, which

19

is the

20

utilized?

21

MS. HAJNOSZ:

part of the total CIP, is -- how is that

Yes, Mr. Chair.

The safe drinking water

22

loans of 6.3 also are targeted for -- to benefit

23

existing customers.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So, you have a total right now -- for

new would be the 11.6?
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1

MS. HAJNOSZ:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MS. HAJNOSZ:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MS. HAJNOSZ:

7

CHAIR KANE:

9
10

Okay.

that's correct.

So, 11.6 currently proposed for

existing.

4

8

Correct,

Uh-huh.
And then the 9.0 for new?
That's correct, Mr. Chair.
And those numbers correlate with the 20.6 --

that's where the 20.6 is coming from the Mayor's?
MS. HAJNOSZ:
CHAIR KANE:

That's correct.
Okay.

And so,

the specific projects that are

11

identified in the Mayor's proposal will specifically

12

be identified for new projects versus existing

13

replacement -- actual CIP projects?

14

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Mr. Chair,

I believe they are identified by

15

district and then funding sources which would

16

correlate to these funding sources.

17

believe that they say existing or new customer, you

18

know; but they are by district and then by funding

19

source in the budget.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

MS. PERDIDO:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MS. PERDIDO:

Thank you.

So,

I don't

Mr. Director, could you --

Mr. Chair?
Yes.
Mr. Chair, if I can just clarify,

if you

24

look at the budget ordinance, under the CIP for

25

water,

there's two sections, one relating to
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1

restricted funds and one for unrestricted.

2

restricted funds are the water source development or

3

the new projects.

4

Okay.

Thank you for providing that.

5

Okay.

Chair yields.

6

the Members?

7

CHAIR KANE:

The

Questions from any of

Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah.

Thanks, Chairman.

Just one

8

question on the meter fee increases, which we're

9

looking at around a 15 to 25 percent increase,

10

for my information, where is the rates for --

11

increase for these determined?

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Okay.

just

Well, what we did was when we do our

13

cost of service analysis, we come up with an

14

estimate for the cost of service for providing these

15

billing, building administration, servicing meters

16

and, you know, cutting bills and those kinds of

17

things.

18

in the service charge.

Those are all the costs that are captured

19

We come up with a cost of service.

20

up to be something like $14 per five-eighth-inch

21

meter, okay?

22

toward a cost of service rate for the -- the water

23

of service charge.

24

went all the way up to cost of service, we double

25

that charge -- more than double that charge; and we

It came

We recognize that we wanted to move

However, we also knew that if we
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didn't want to do that.

2

And so, we decided we wanted to move in the

3

direction of cost of servicei and then we have to

4

balance that out with how far we go for water usage

5

charge.

Okay.

So, it's kind of balancing act.

And so, it was determined that we would raise

6

7

the water service charge slightly more than what we

8

are giving to the water consumption charge to move

9

toward cost of services.

So, we'll see that the --

10

the five-eighth-inch meter, for example, gets about

11

a 16 percent rate increase really.

12

And then the caution there again is here we

13

are trying to -- we look at affordability issues,

14

right?

15

shielding the low user on the usage charge.

16

didn't raise the rate at all.

17

We want to make sure we put -- we're
We

We kept it at $1.42.

You know, if we all of a sudden increase the

18

service charge to -- you know,

19

know, 8 or whatever, you just kind of reverse that

20

whole affordability issue because everybody gets

21

charged that, right, no matter how much water you

22

use.

from 6.50 to, you

23

So, we had to kind of do a balancing act to

24

say how much of an impact would it be if we raised

25

this service charge to certain levels.
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1

you know, we do some sensitivity analysis to find

2

out what the total impact is going to be, the user

3

charge and the service charge.

4

how we arrived at it.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

MS. HAJNOSZ:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

MS. HAJNOSZ:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10
11

Okay.

So, that's kind of

Thank you.

Uh-huh.
That's very helpful --

Okay.
in verifying that increase.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Further questions?

And, Members, the Chair asks for your

12
13

consideration.

14

questions, but I wanted to make sure that you folks

15

have your opportunities to go through.

16

don't see anybody react, I'm going to jump in and

17

ask a few questions; and it's just to help me as

18

we're all equal in having to make the decision.

19

I need some clarity on some of these issues.

20

please, I appreciate the flexibility.

21

The Chair does have a lot of

So, if I

So,

So,

Along the same lines of Mr. Molina,

22

Ms. Hajnosz -- and I asked you this, I think,

23

earlier; but I'll ask it --

24

MS. HAJNOSZ:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Uh-huh.
-- it will be along that lines is the monthly
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water service charges

2

MS. HAJNOSZ:

3

CHAIR KANE:

Uh-huh.
-- because the rate increase of 12 percent

4

includes 1.3 million for operation and maintenance

5

and because you've described that the proposed

6

rates -- the service charge, that money goes for

7

operations and maintenance?

8
9

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Mr. Chair, it goes for a portion of

operations and maintenance.

It goes for primarily

10

customer-related costs, you know, cutting the bills,

11

administering the bills, collections.

12

specific costs that are attributed to servicing a

13

customer, and that would include operations and

14

maintenance on the meter only.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

It goes for

So, you've also described that this

16

proposal -- there's still a very significant subsidy

17

in this number --

18

MS. HAJNOSZ:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Chair
and that this number -- that the existing

20

number is much lower than what the actual cost is

21

for the services that are provided, so -- and then

22

you've just described that every person --

23

MS. HAJNOSZ:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Uh-huh.
-- no matter what their usage is

lS

going to

be impacted if what you described to Mr. Molina went
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up to $8.

2

MS. HAJNOSZ:

3

CHAIR KANE:

Uh-huh.
But you've

but you earlier described in

4

another presentation -- or the previous presentation

5

of the Water Resources Committee that this number is

6

actually very low compared to what it

7

actual cost of it is; is that correct?

8

9
10
11

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Yes,

that's correct.

what the

And let me try and

distinguish between the water service charge and the
water usage charge.
In the water service charge, as I mentioned,

12

we try to collect the costs for servicing the

13

customer which includes a lot of these

14

administrative customer-related costs.

15

It can also include costs related to

16

delivering a certain level of service,

17

the peaking capacity portion of a utility's costs to

18

a customer because,

19

consumers may not all be using the maximum all the

20

time, the utility still has to maintain the capacity

21

in the pipe.

22

significant fixed costs can be collected in the

23

service charge.

24
25

Okay.

Okay.

for example,

for example, even though

So, some of those very

And that's how -- when we do our cost

of service, that's how we typically have allocated
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1

some of these costs to say in addition to your

2

customer costs and billing costs, we're going to

3

allocate some portion of capacity costs to the water

4

service charge portion.

5

That is why we have in the cost of service

6

analysis a fairly high charge per month in the cost

7

of service basis, okay, the $14 that

8

earlier.

9

every customer based on meter size, okay?

10

I

mentioned

That service charge does get applied to

The balance of the cost for a utility will be

11

collected in the consumption charge.

12

costs for, you know, servicing the transmission

13

lines and some distribution lines, your source, your

14

storage -- you know, everything else, all those

15

other O&M costs -- related costs go -- are collected

16

into the usage charge.

17

And so, O&M

To the degree we're not collecting full cost

18

of service for the service charge, those costs are

19

going to get collected in the usage charge.

20

those usage charges are applying to all usage.

And

21

So, it -- the term subsidy really -- because

22

I want to -- when I use the term subsidy, it's more

23

in terms of subsidizing between classes.

24

So, the agriculture rate has a subsidy,

25

right, because the agriculture rate are not based on
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1

cost of service.

So, generally these customers are

2

subsidizing the ago
But from the standpoint of the service charge

3

4

and the usage charge, you know,

5

should have been collected in the service charge are

6

being collected for the usage charge; but it's been

7

collected across the board from all customers.

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

the costs that

Well, it's the users that are in the

especially in the general use category, the high-end

10

users are the ones who are offsetting the costs for

11

the rate that's lower than the actual cost within

12

the service charge; is that correct?

13

Do you want me to ask that again?

14

MS. HAJNOSZ:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Could -- yeah, could
Okay.

The service charge you've already

16

identified as this numbers -- even the proposals are

17

lower than what the actual cost is.

18

MS. HAJNOSZ:

19

CHAIR KANE:

Uh-huh.
You folks have proposed balancing that by the

20

rate increases which are reflected in the proposals

21

on the next slide which is on the second-to-the-last

22

page from -- for -- say, as an example,

23

25,000 gallon general guys,

24

from 1.91 to 2.16 and then the 2.25 up to 2.54.

25

10,000 to

that's where the rate is

So, the high-end users, those over the 10,000
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gallon users in the general category --

2

MS. HAJNOSZ:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

Uh-huh.
are basically picking -- because the

money's got to come from somewhere.

5

MS. HAJNOSZ:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Right.
And so, they're the ones -- the high-end

7

users, the more they use, that's where you're

8

getting the offset of what the actual cost is for

9

the service charges?

10

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Well, we -- there isn't a deliberate -- what

11

we do -

12

cost of service -- if we were to raise the rates of

13

cost of service level, we might have been collecting

14

somewhere in the -- like $7 million from the water

15

service charge at cost of service base rates.

16

let me back up -- is we say, okay, under

In reality, we're really collecting something

17

like 2 million or 2-1/2 million from these service

18

charges.

19

collected from your volume charge, okay?

20

So, the balance of those costs have to be

So, we didn't say, well, how much of that 5

21

million is going to be collected from the first

22

block or the second block or the third block?

23

just -- we -- it's part of the shortfall that needs

24

to be collected.

25

charges accordingly to come up with that amount

And then we design our volume
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1

that -- the amount of money that needs to be

2

collected for volume charges.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

4

Questions, Members?

5

I have another question.

And the floor is open.
On the typical bill

6

impact chart, which is on the last page, what you're

7

showing us and what I think we see as general users,

8

we're aware that the wastewater services as well as

9

water service,

I believe,

is an integrated -- is

10

integrated on one bill.

11

because outside of this discussion,

12

request for a sewer rate increase of 17 percent.

13

MS. HAJNOSZ:

14

CHAIR KANE:

And so, what we'll see -there's also a

Uh-huh.
So, now what the John Q. Public and Jane Q.

15

Public is going to see if we approve this is not

16

going to look like this.

17

MS. HAJNOSZ:

18

CHAIR KANE:

Correct.
It will look like something that's going to

19

be more than double the proposed increase that

20

you're reflecting here because the actual sewer

21

increase rate is going to be 17 percent, which is

22

higher than the water use increase rate.

23

MS. HAJNOSZ:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Uh-huh, uh-huh.
So, there's going to be a certain level of

sticker shock, if you will --
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1

MS. HAJNOSZ:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Right.
-- on the rate increases.

And so, I'll just

3

point that out that this -- this slide could be

4

perceived as misleading because I know you -- your

5

attempt is to show us what the actual impact would

6

be just for the water

7

MS. HAJNOSZ:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

MS. HAJNOSZ:

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

Uh-huh.
-- proposed increase.
Right.
But the reality is the public -- we have an

integrated billing system

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

13

CHAIR KANE:

Right.
-- where it's integrating sewer and water.

14

And so, we're going to see actually a lot more of an

15

increase.

16

MS. HAJNOSZ:

17

CHAIR KANE:

Uh-huh.
Anyway, so that was just a statement because

18

I -- I noted it down and I wanted to make sure that

19

Members are aware that that's what the public is

20

going to see, not what we're seeing but what they're

21

really going to see is something that's not like

22

this.

23
24
25

The Chair yields.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yes, Mr. Molina.

One question, Chairman.

Thank you.

And if my question seems to go more towards policy
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1

or anything, please, you know, by all means rule me

2

out of order; but this is just running around in my

3

mind at this time.

4

I'm just trying to surmise that if a

5

significant percent of the annual water development

6

comes from the water rates or to find a new water

7

development sources comes from water rates, am I

8

correct in assessing that the customer is going to

9

be paying for this?

And

and if that is true,

10

then why not the -

11

be placed on the developers, you know, paying for

12

more of the costs?

13

more of the cost -- the emphasis

I'm just -- this has just been going around

14

in my mind because I -- to me, I would hope that,

15

you know, with all these new projects coming up,

16

that the emphasis would be made more on the

17

developers helping to pay for this cost for finding

18

water -- water sources.
Can I get a comment?

19

20

CHAIR KANE:

Director?

21

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, as I've stated earlier, you know,

22

we shouldn't confuse expansion projects, which are

23

to take on new customers, versus replacement

24

projects.

25

With regard to development of new sources,
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1

developers do pay for the new source either directly

2

or indirectly.

3

wanted to do projects up in the Upcountry area and

4

Pukalani, he did a well in Kaupakulua and turned it

5

over to the department for operation and

6

maintenance.

7

that well.

And he was given source credits for

We are currently working with a couple of

8
9

As an example, Dowling, when he

other developers who are proposing to do either a

10

treatment plant or drilling of wells so that source

11

would be available to their projects.

12

the case of new customers, they are paying for

13

the

14

- for the source.
If I may, the water system development fee

15

broken down into three components.

16

the source component.

17

the final is a storage component.

18

So -- and in

One component

1S
1S

The next is transmission, and

So, if a developer puts up a storage tank

19

that needs or meets his storage requirements, then

20

he's given credit under the water system development

21

fee for the storage portion.

22

source, then he's given credit for the source

23

portion of the water system development fee.

24

the new customers are paying for the -- you know,

25

the expansion of the systems to accommodate them.

If he develops a
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you for that clarification.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions, Members?

If not, the

4

Chair's going to call for our morning break at this

5

time; but before we do so, if the Members don't have

6

any further questions, then the Chair is going to

7

ask that we find out if the Director's going to be

8

prepared to move on with what we had

9

intentionally -- intended to schedule for this

10

afternoon; and that is the EP counts.
Is that something that you folks would be

11
12

prepared to discuss this morning?

13

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, we are prepared to discuss that.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So, Members, one last chance, is there

15

any further questions along the rates?

16

would be found on Page 37 of the ordinances in your

17

binder.

18

where we're at with the proposal.

19

And that

So, that way you have a clear picture of

If there are no further questions, I believe

20

Ms. Hajnosz might be around just for a few more

21

minutes during the break.

22

that you need to ask her on an individual basis, I'm

23

sure she'll make herself available.

24
25

Okay.

If you have any questions

The time now is 10:30.

will recess until 10:45.

Recess.

Members, we

(Gavel)
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1

RECESS:

2

RECONVENE:

3

CHAIR KANE:

10:53 a.m.
(Gavel)

Members,

just some housekeeping

4

before we move forward,

5

March 24th transmittal from Michelle Anderson, Chair

6

of the Water Resources Committee,

7

I believe Member Anderson noted that this can

8

basically help -- FYI for all of you,

9

additional information for determining our rate

there was put on your desk a

to this body.

And

some

10

discussion at some point in the future.

11

just additional information that was transmitted to

12

the Water Resources Committee that may have some use

13

for you folks here in the Budget and Finance

14

Committee's discussion.

15

So, it's

Okay?

So, thank you, Member Anderson for that.

And

16

before we go any further, Members, without

17

objections, the Chair will make note when we go into

18

our recesses that the floor is not someplace for

19

people in the gallery to come on and start

20

approaching everybody.

21

off-limits to the public except for when they're

22

testifying.

23

The floor really is

And we'd like to maintain that.

So, I will announce that during the breaks to

24

make sure that the public doesn't come onto the

25

floor.

Those recess -- recesses are necessary for
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1

all of us to take care of our personal needs.

2

So, we'll go ahead and -- without your

3

objections, I'll go ahead and make a note of that

4

when we go into our recesses.

Okay?

5

Hearing no further discussion,

6

provide, if needed, Ms. Morrison, our Budget

7

Director, any opportunity to make some opening

8

comments on this phase of our discussion with the

9

Water Department and the EP counts as we have

10
11

scheduled out for discussion today.
MS. MORRISON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'd like to

Ms. Morrison.

At the request of

12

the Budget Committee staff, I had asked all of the

13

departments that have EP expansion requests to

14

prepare handouts for you to justify and explain and

15

give you a brief overview of what their EP expansion

16

requests -- I guess I should say equivalent

17

personnel so that we know what EP stands for

18

equivalent personnel requisition requests.

19

that's what Director Tengan will, along with Deputy

20

Jeff Pearson, explained to the Committee.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.

And

Director Tengan, we'll

22

provide you with the mic and then you can go ahead

23

and lead -- start the discussion.

24
25

MR. TENGAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

For this year

coming year's budget, we have proposed four
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1

expansion positions, one in the Director's office,

2

two in -

3

operations division.

4

in the plant division and one in the field

The position in the Director's office is for

5

a safety and training officer.

For the field

6

operations, we're proposing a Pipe Fitter; and for

7

plant operations, we're proposing a

8

Microbiologist II and also a Clerk.
I'll go over the field operations and plant

9
10

operations positions, and I'll leave -- I'll give

11

Jeff the Safety and Training Officer position.
If I may, I'll start off with field

12
13

operations.

We're asking for another Pipe Fitter

14

for the Lahaina district.

15

we're completing a project in -- to service

16

Honokohau Valley.

At the current time,

I don't know whether the Committee is aware,

17
18

but we've been trucking water to Honokohau Valley

19

for over three years now on pretty much a daily

20

basis.

21

Maui Land & Pine whereby they will supply water

22

to

23

water through a pipeline into the -- into Honokohau

24

Valley, thereby saving us the effort to truck water

25

every day up into the valley.

And we've entered into an agreement with

to the department and we would transport that
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1

So, another Pipe Fitter is going to be needed

2

to check out the system, to maintain the system and

3

to do other work as well in the Lahaina area.

4

For the plant operations, we're proposing to

5

reallocate one of the Microbiologist II to a

6

Microbiologist III position.

7

this reallocation is needed to do higher-level work

8

as far as biological analysis using sophisticated

9

instrumentation is concerned.

10

This position -- or

The Clerk position -- right now we have

11

higher-level Microbiologists and even -- even the

12

lab supervisor doing clerical work by updating data

13

files, putting -- you know, filing paperwork and all

14

that.

15

efforts by the higher-level positions and take care

16

of the clerical needs of the division.

And so, this position will replace those

17

In addition to the lab, this Clerk position

18

would be also helping out with the other functions

19

within the plant division.

20

So, with that, I'll turn it over to my -- to

21

Jeff.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. PEARSON:

24
25

Mr. Pearson?
Good morning, Mr. Chair.
The final expansion position is for a

Safety -- Safety and Training Officer.
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1

there -- or as you may not know, we've been working

2

closely now with the County Risk Management division

3

and they're working on a chlorine policy to be a

4

County-wide chlorine policy.

5

with Parks and with Public Works departments to

6

provide that policy.

7

getting this position.

We're working also

That's one of the impetus of

8

I won't read off everything that's listed in

9

the handout that you just; received, but we've been

10

without a Safety and Training Officer for,

11

approximately ten years.

12

I think,

And, you know, as the safety issues rise and

13

the litigation issues rise and the detail of the

14

work and the difficulty of the work increases, I

15

think it's clear that this position is actually

16

probably been needed for -- for a while.

17

Working with County Risk Management, they

18

were able to start to guide us and to provide some

19

training; but to get a good

20

Department of Water Supply and to get more refined

21

for our immediate needs, I feel that it -- we are in

22

need of this position.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

good work within the

Thank you.

Members, you have a March 23rd,

24

'05 communication from Director Morrison relating to

25

the justification for the Safety and Training
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Officer annual salary request.

2

additional information there.
The Chair will open the floor for discussion

3

4

on the request for four additional EP personnel.
Mr. Molina?

5

6

So, there's

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Clarification

7

that the four positions you're requesting there are

8

eight months -- eight-month positions and are they

9

going to be permanent positions as well?

10
11

MR. TENGAN:

Yes.

Mr. Chair, they're intended to be

permanent positions.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

MR. PEARSON:

For eight months?

If I may, Mr. Chair, I think the -- the

14

purpose of the eight months is that it's going to

15

take a while to get that person hired, to go through

16

the whole process.

17

shown as eight months; but, you know, in the

18

following budgets it will be for a yearly

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

MR. PEARSON:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So, in this budget it was just

For a year.

Okay.

-- yearly.
All right.

Further questions?
Yeah.

Thank you.
Member Tavares.

Mr. Chairman, just a

24

comment that all of

I think all of the expansion

25

positions will come in at eight months because they
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1

need to allow time for recruitment.

2

seeing that on all of the requests.

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

this?

5

followed by Mr. Hokama.

6

Thank you.

Further questions, Members, on

The Chair -- oh, go ahead.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So, we'll be

Mr. Mateo

Chairman, thank you very much.

The

7

department, at this particular point, all of your

8

existing positions are filled?

9
10
11

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, no, we have a number of vacancies

that we're working on to fill.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And none of those existing vacancies

12

could be maneuvered to accommodate this potential

13

expansion?

14
15
16

MR. TENGAN:

No.

And that's why we're proposing these new

positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Chairman, I -- just the other

17

day there was a request by Mr. Hokama for the

18

breakdown of the department's vacancies.

19

still going to be getting that request done?

20

CHAIR KANE:

Are we

Yes, that -- it has been sent; and so, we're

21

going to be re -- waiting for a response.

22

is for the update of what vacancies are out there.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you.

I'll yield.

Mr. Hokama followed by

Mr. Pontani11a.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

My first question would be is there

2

something so specific to the Water Department that a

3

Safety Officer should be there and not in Risk

4

Management since we're working on a

5

department-wide -- all department-wide uniformity?

6

MR. PEARSON:

Mr. Chair, I think the fact that Risk

7

Management is evaluating the entire County --

8

they're looking at all the departments in the

9

County; but I feel that -- and, well,

the department

10

feels that they won't be able to dedicate the effort

11

and the time needed to do all of the requirements

12

that is needed for the Department of Water Supply.

13

I -- I don't know.

14
15
16
17
18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I--

You state that for a fact, your

statement?
MR. PEARSON:

That's their -- that's the perception that

the Department of Water Supply has.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well,

then my next question would be

19

has there been a rise in the amount of workmen's

20

comp and other serious injuries within the

21

department in the near past?

22

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, not to my recollection; but we do

23

have occasionally, you know,

industrial accidents

24

that need to be addressed and some additional

25

training we have to be provided in those areas.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So, has the department received

2

comments from State or Federal OSHA branches of your

3

department's inadequacy to address safety and

4

training concerns?

5

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, no, we haven't had any direct

6

communications from -- from HIOSH regarding our need

7

for a Safety Officer's position.

8

doesn't preclude us from -- from taking action so

9

that we can,

However,

that

in the future, prevent or minimize

10

accidents and address safety concerns within the

11

department.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So, at this point the department is

13

informing this Committee that there is a safety

14

concern that needs to be addressed?

15

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, there's always a safety concern

16

especially when you're dealing with heavy equipment,

17

with chlorine gas and things like that.

18

Our

our field personnel work -- work on --

19

works on a daily basis with heavy equipment in the

20

trenches with backhoes, dozers and other -- cranes.

21

Even in the plant operations division they often

22

remove motors and pumps to do their maintenance or

23

repair work.

24

the department.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So, there's always a safety concern in

How is the department addressing that
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1

concern at this time without the dedicated Safety

2

Training Officer?

3

MR. TENGAN:

We've been pretty much leaving it up to the

4

division heads, you know, who could -- if this

5

function is taken away from, you know,

6

they could divert more time to devote to their more

7

specific duties or functions.

8
9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

CHAIR KANE:

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

then

We can expect better

performance then, Chairman.

10

them,

I'm done.

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla?

Thank you.

Continuing on where

12

Mr. Hokama left off, you know,

13

you know, we do have a Risk Management group.

14

would think that that particular department would be

15

the ones that should be

16

Training Officer should come from.

17

I would think that,
And I

- you know, your Safety and

I know that the particular area -- they've

18

been lacking in manpower in trying to provide all of

19

the training needs for the County.

20

man can't do everything.

21

You know, one

And what I would hope to see is that because

22

we have big departments -- you know, not only the

23

Water Department but you have Public Works as well

24

as the Parks -- and each department has heavy

25

vehicles and your department deals with,
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1

different chemicals -- that several Safety Officers

2

are required for the County.
I don't know if this is the right area to put

3

4

in a Safety Officer at this time, but I would think

5

that the department should be somehow conversing

6

with Risk Management in trying to create more

7

positions in that area to take care of the County

8

safety needs.
The question that I have is in regards to the

9

In going over the justification,

10

Microbiologist II.

11

if we do hire a Microbiologist II,

that we would be

12

reducing third-party vendor costs.

Would you know

13

the vendor costs at this time, you know, how much

14

money we payout to -- I guess to do testing and

15

certification?

16

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, I don't have the exact amount that

17

we spend for sending out samples or -- or samples of

18

the testing at the private labs; but it is a

19

substantial amount.

20

I've seen invoices and I've signed purchase

21

orders or purchase requests, you know,

22

amounts of $20,000 on a regular basis.

23

the tests that we got to do on the water systems,

24

especially those water systems that provided with

25

surface water.

in the
And with all

There's a lot of testing that we got
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to do on a routine basis.

2
3

4

Anyway, that's the reason why we need more
people in the lab.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Mr. Chair, can we have

5

something in writing in that -- in regards to what

6

costs -- the third-party costs doing some work for

7

certification work as well as testing?

8

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Noted, Mr. Pontanilla.

9

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, I might add that we are

10

purchasing -- or we did purchase equipment for the

11

lab with the expectation that we would get the lab

12

certified to do more tests.

13

the lab's certified to do a number of tests that

14

need not go out for further evaluation or analysis.

15

And so, we are trying to make the lab more

16

independent of private labs because of the cost.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

20

Thank you.

We are certifying

Thank you, Chair.
Member Johnson followed by Member

Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

or

George, I know that you've got

21

these positions that are here; but refresh my

22

memory.

23

department have expansion positions to assist

24

with -- I think it was clerical work and other

25

functions with regard to the water use and

Last year did we have any -- or did your
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development plan?
MR. TENGAN:

I will recall we did put in for additional

3

positions within the planning division with the

4

expectation that more staff would be available so

5

that division heads can, you know, delegate some of

6

the work that she's doing now to other people and

7

where she wouldn't be so tied up with many of the

8

major projects within

9

division.

10
11

within the planning

We do have a clerical person right now

within the planning division.
So,

I don't think that we,

last year

12

especially, submitted for any requests to expand the

13

clerical staff within the planning division.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And the reason that I ask is what

15

I'm not seeing and -- with the emphasis that with

16

the general plan coming up and the need for the

17

water use and development plan, I know that's been

18

one of your top priorities.

19

wondering if there was a need for an expansion

20

position in that area to accelerate or to help

21

assist in the planning division,

22

or at least move it forward.

23

I'm just, you know,

And I'm curious, you know,

to accelerate that

if you made a

24

request for an expansion position or if you didn't

25

make a request and why didn't you make a request or
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don't you really need it?
MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, I take back what I

just stated

We -- in 2005 we did request for a

3

earlier.

4

clerical/data technician which probably is the

5

position that you're referring to.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

But then what I'm asking is

7

did we fund it or did we not fund it or is that

8

sufficient for all of your needs now or do you need

9

additional personnel?

10

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, yes, the position has been funded;

11

but we've been waiting filling of the vacancy until

12

such time that we can obtain the office space.

13

Right now the planning division is located within

14

the old boardroom.

15

and couldn't handle any more staff.

16

They're quite cramped right now

So, within the next couple months or so, we

17

will be having the space available for additional

18

staff.

19

Hokama Building.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

We're in the process of occupying the former

Okay.

But -- so, what you're

21

saying now is that the person will be hired when you

22

have sufficient office space?

23
24
25

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, yes, we intend on proceeding with

recruitment to fill that position.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Thank you very much,
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George.

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

Thank you.

Well,

Mr. Molina?
Yeah,

thank you, Chairman.

first of all,

if any questions that I

5

have drive you or any other member of this body a

6

little nuts, you know, please accept my apologies;

7

but for me as one of nine decision-makers,

8

the right to ask questions that helps me to make a

9

full informed decision.

10

I'm sure that, you know,

each of us here reserve that right as well.
So, anyway --

11
12

I reserve

CHAIR KANE:

Molina,

just so you know, there's no need to

13

apologize for anything.

14

for any reason I see the line going somewhere,

15

basically ask for clarification on where you're

16

going with it so we can try and keep -- keep it

17

narrow.

18

Ask the questions; and if

So, at least please feel free to ask whatever

19

question it takes for you to make an informed

20

decision.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

And that -- that's a

22

nice segue to this question that I have.

23

rule me out of order if it does sort of stray.

24
25

I'll

First of all,

It does

I'm trying to tie this question

with the aggressive CIP schedule that's been
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proposed by the department.

2

clarification on all these proposed expansion

3

positions that you have here.

4

And I appreciate the

I did note that there is no expansion being

5

proposed for the engineering staff because,

6

according to the rate study, it was noted that the

7

engineering shortage needs to be addressed.
So,

8

9

I'd just like to get comments from the

department as to why there's no proposal at this

10

time for this budget request for additional

11

engineers.

12

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, those positions that Member Molina

13

is referring to were approved in the '05 budget.

14

currently have five engineering positions vacant.

15

We've got -- we have four engineer -

16

positions and one CE V

17

vacant right now.

18

trying to fill those positions.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

CE IV

VI position that are

And we're trying to -- we're

Okay.

And at this time, so, you

20

still need more engineers to meet this aggressive

21

CIP schedule that you have over the next five

22

years?

23
24
25

MR. TENGAN:

Correct.

We have the positions, but we can't

fill them due to the shortage of engineers.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

We

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Molina.
Ms. Anderson, you had a question?

2
3

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Not really,

just a comment based

on Mr. Molina's preface to his last question.
I had a professor in college, a chemistry

5

6

professor, who -- who told us all that the only

7

stupid question is the question you don't ask.

8

ask away.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

And the Chair shares that.

1--

10

again, if you keep going and it -- and the Chair

11

sees,

12

you to clarify.

13

beyond,

14

thanks for the clarification; and we'll keep on

15

moving.

And then, you know,

then bring it back.

I'll just ask
if it does go

If it doesn't,

then

So, Mr. Hokama.

16
17

in his opinion, it's straying,

So,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

My question now regarding

18

your request for a Microbiologist II position, that

19

is what you currently have, right, a

20

Microbiologist II position?

21

MR. TENGAN:

That's correct, but we intend to reallocate

22

one of the Microbiologist II positions to a III

23

level to do higher-level work.

24

like to have this Microbiologist II position so that

25

we could refill that function.

And we
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And my question is to

2

understand why you just don't ask for the

3

Microbiologist III position because that is the

4

expansion?

5

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, on -- your -- that's another way

6

of dealing with the positions that we need.

7

could ask for a Microbiologist III; and, once

8

approved, we could recruit for the position and

9

you see, by doing that, you would have to go through

10
11

We

two hirings.
One, you would have -- when you create the

12

III position, then you've got to advertise for that

13

pos -- you know, advertise for that position, go

14

receive applications and then -- then go through the

15

interview process and fill that position.

16

Then let's say somebody in-house qualifies

17

for that and is promoted to that III position.

18

now we've got to go and advertise for the II

19

position and going through the same process.

20

Then

I guess in this case here we see someone

21

in-house that's -- that may be already doing that

22

function that's promotable into that position.

23

if we just did the reallocation,

24

to go through the recruitment process only one time

25

rather than two times.

then we would need

So, it would be a more
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expedient way of filling all positions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm not -- and I understand that.

I

3

don't have a problem with that one option; but from

4

a budgetary standpoint, what is being asked for is

5

actually a Microbiologist III.

6

is what you're trying to build up to, the No. III

7

level.

8

MR. TENGAN:

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And so,

for us, that

Correct.
And I don't have a problem with

10

promoting from within first.

Shouldn't you have the

11

choices?

12

preference, then you could have already had DPS

13

reallocate the position to a III.

Because if that was so and that was your

14

MR. TENGAN:

Correct.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Maybe we should have sent a letter to

16

DPS, Chairman, and ask how should we be doing this?

17

Because when planning comes, you know, that's how

18

they've always come with their plan of III and IV

19

positions and then once we grant, they reallocate;

20

and next year they keep asking for that same bloody

21

position again.

22

We give.

They reallocate.

So, you know, they're pulling the wool over

23

our eyes.

We buy into the position, not the

24

reallocation.

25

positions, that's what we're supporting based on the

And when we give authorization to new
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department's comments.

2

A reallocation is a deceiving way of getting

3

position counts and funding to do what you're not

4

telling Council you will be doing.

5

problem with that, Chairman, a fundamental problem

6

with that.

And I have a

7

CHAIR KANE:

We'll send that, Mr. Hokama.

8

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, if I may

9

CHAIR KANE:

Director, go ahead.

10

MR. TENGAN:

you know, we're not trying to hide

11

anything here.

12

reallocate a Microbiologist II to a III position;

13

and once that's done, then we would have a need for

14

a Microbiologist II.

15

forthright in telling you exactly what we want to

16

do.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We're telling you that we want to

So, you know, we're being

And, again, Mr. Director, I apologize

18

if you took that -- my last statement to the

19

Chairman in regards to you and your department.

20

was, I guess, giving an example of how planning has

21

approached this type of request.

22

apologize to you if you took it as a comment to you

23

and your department.

24
25

I

And so, I

I think you have been very forthright ln how
you would plan to approach your request; and I don't
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1

have a problem with this because it's all in black

2

and white how you plan to implement it, if granted.

3

And I can say you're one of the few departments that

4

have been forthright in how you want to approach it.

5

So, I can appreciate what you have presented to us.

6

My question to you was whether or not it was

7

easier to ask for the Microbiologist III since you

8

already have the existing No. II position in your

9

department's position inventory.

10

I'm done with the Microbiologist position,

11

Chair.

12

have another question in regard to other positions

13

later.

14

CHAIR KANE:

So, I'm happy to relinquish the floorj but I

Okay.

Thank you

thank you.

If I can,

15

Members,

just to follow up on this Microbiologist,

16

on details 18-30, Director Tengan, this shows a

17

Water Microbiologist III position that's currently

18

there and funded.

19

Is that currently vacant or is that somebody

20

that exists and is doing the job that you folks are

21

talking about?

22
23
24
25

MR. TENGAN:

Details 18-30.

Mr. Chair, I don't have that particular

document in front of me.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members.

And that's in the plant operations,

And then there's a list of all the
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1

Microbiologists that are under that division.

2

There's one Microbiologist III about three-quarters

3

of the way down the page.

4

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, since it's not listed on our

5

vacancies -- let me check here.

6

of the positions that's listed on our vacancies.

7

So, I would have to assume that that position is

8

already filled.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So,

Yeah, it's not one

just to follow on Mr. Hokama's

10

comment, so, the intention is to bump up this person

11

to a Micro III from a Micro II; is that correct?

12

MR. TENGAN:

That's correct.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

14

So, we'll be reflecting in next year's

budget two Micro III positions?

15

MR. TENGAN:

I believe so, you know.

16

CHAIR KANE:

And the other question, to follow up on a

17

couple of comments that were made earlier or

18

responses -- excuse me -- you talked about space

19

space sufficiency.

20

question has to be asked.

21

space for the four requests you have before us this

22

morning?

23

MR. TENGAN:

And so, I guess the general
Do you have sufficient

Mr. Chair, I believe that we do have

24

sufficient space within the lab if we're talking

25

about the Microbiologists.

Most of the work is
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1

down -- done out in the field anyway.

2

a small amount of space will be needed for them to

3

do their paperwork in the office.

4

And so,

Space for the Safety Officer, space will be

5

made available when we move.

6

the planning division to the Hokama Building.

7

We'll re -- relocate

With regard to the --

8

CHAIR KANE:

Pipe Fitter.

9

MR. TENGAN:

-- Pipe Fitter, you know,

10

be doing the work

11

anyway.

12

the field,

13

required for that person.

14

just

CHAIR KANE:

that person would

his work out in the field

And most of his time would be spent out in
and no

Okay.

no office space will be

And then, again, finally,

just to

15

follow up before I yield the floor to the Members

16

for additional questions,

17

you described to us the Pipe Fitter I for the

18

Lahaina district and what the current status

19

driving a truck every day delivering water.

20

the savings that you

1S

of

So, here we go getting manini on my part.

21

So, is there some reflection -- and I'm looking at

22

Page 18-27 of the details under field operations.

23

Because we not going to have one truck going back

24

and forth every single day, are you reflecting

25

anything in fuel charge -- or fuel costs since
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1

you're having somebody doing it, putting it in

2

the -- putting the water in the pipe now instead of

3

having a delivery truck going back and forth every

4

day 365?

5
6
7

MR. TENGAN:

No, Mr. Chair, we haven't done any downward

adjustment on the fuel costs.
CHAIR KANE:

And the reason I ask that is because under

8

diesel, it's level; and then under gasoline diesel

9

oil on the top of the page, there's an actual

10

increase there.

11

that this truck is no longer going to be used every

12

day back and forth.

13

MR. TENGAN:

And then you're describing to us

Mr. Chair, the person that drives the truck

14

is an equipment operator; and right now, since we

15

need to provide water to Honokohau Valley, that's

16

where we prioritize his use.

17

We have other means out in the field where

18

equipment is needed to do our necessary repair

19

repair work as -- and ln some cases, we even do some

20

small pipeline jobs.

21

itself, you know, we had related line in-house -- we

22

needed to provide in-house equipment and labor.

23

We're doing another project out in Haiku

As an example, that pipeline

24

that -- in-house, and that's -- that requires

25

equipment and labor also.

But that job has taken a
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1

back seat to the Honokohau Valley job where if

2

another equipment operator was available, he could

3

be assigned to that Haiku job; and that work could

4

continue on uninterrupted.

5
6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you for that response.

Members, before I recognize any of you,

the

an initial

7

Chair's going to be bold and make a

8

policy statement for -- that may be a consideration.

9

We have an Emergency Fund that was dedicated

10

of $4 million.

11

dollars in this budget session to increase it by

12

another million to 5 million.

13

There's another request of a million

The discussion along that lines was for us to

14

have a more stable recognition of funds that would

15

be identified instead of carryover in savings.

16

And the Chair's intent really as a policy

17

statement is to look at -- instead of kind of adding

18

up the carryover savings and still have this fund

19

that's being put on the side that is now lapsible,

20

we need to start weaning back the amount of

21

carryover in savings that's occurring within the

22

departments.

23

more stricter look.

24
25

So, there's going to be a little bit

This carry -- this Emergency Fund now
represents approximately over 1 percent of the
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1

overall budget that's sitting there that's not going

2

to be touched unless for emergency issues.

3

that -- we have opportunity to build that up.

4

By the same token, we're looking at,

And

this

5

year, a major carryover in savings fund that has

6

all of a sudden has been boosted.

7

was described as efficiencies, we all know that a

8

lot of it is because certain jobs aren't getting

9

done.

10
11

And although it

Services aren't being provided or projects

aren't getting completed.
So, we need to start recognizing that.

And

12

so, we're going to get a little tighter on looking

13

at the details of some places because we don't want

14

them to be padding the pocket and later on coming

15

back and showing, look what we've done, we've saved

16

all this money when,

17

and it wasn't necessary to be there.

18

in fact,

the money was there

So, I just threw that out, Members.

We've

19

demonstrated that we're going to be putting moneys

20

on the side; and I wanted you to know that as we

21

look through these budgets proposals in the

22

departments and divisions,

23

closer look at some of these program areas and the

24

amount of money that's being requested.

25

there is going to be a

So, I made that statement; and it's going to
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show up again later on.

2

now.

3

4
5

6

With that,
recognized.

So, I ' l l just let you know

I know Mr. Pontanilla wanted to be

Go ahead, sir.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
You know,

Thank you, Chair.

I appreciate what the director had

7

mentioned in regards to his requirements for

8

expansion; but I think the proper way for me is that

9

if you're going to require a Microbiologist III,

10

then it should be shown as a III so that when budget

11

time comes in next year, you know, you know, we're

12

not surprised at, hey, how come you have another

13

Microbiologist III in your staffing?

14

And it's one way that -- you know, you hear

15

the employees out there that have this perception as

16

far as trying to,

17

sometimes when we do that, you know,

18

becomes, you know,

19

employees, you know, not to be considered?

20

I guess, promote within.

is it fair?

And

the question

Is it fair for other

I don't know the process as far as promotions

21

within the County.

Yet,

first and foremost is that

22

we want to, you know, promote within; and if we're

23

going to be up-and-up with, you know,

24

of the department,

25

we're going to require a Microbiologist III, you

the employees

then we need to show that -- if
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1

know, we should show it as a Microbiologist III, so

2

that if you want to fill it, then you post it.
And if there's other candidates that want to

3

4

try,

5

Microbiologist II and promote within without having

6

any other employee having the opportunity for that

7

promotion.

You know,

just don't pick a

That's just a comment that I'd like to make

8
9

then let them try.

that it should have been shown as a

10

Microbiologist III.

11

have the opportunity to revise that as

12

Microbiologist III instead of a II.
Thank you, Chair.

13
14

And I don't know if he will

CHAIR KANE:

15

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Mr. Hokama,
Yeah,

further discussion?

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

just be -- just so that we're

17

clear on the

18

Deputy Director would be -- I don't know who has

19

more oversight on the personnel, if it's the Deputy

20

or the Director himself.

21

your department has presented to us under Section 18

22

of the details, which is your Water Department

23

and

just to Mr. Director Tengan since he is

24

our

the head of our department,

25

from this budget to the proposed budget, you've

excuse me, Chairman.

Maybe the

But as we understand what
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1

already reallocated two Microbiologist II, two

2

Microbiologist I.

3

And we're looking at detail Page 18-30, 30.

4

So, I'm just reading what is the disposition of how

5

it arrived.

6

to No. I.

7

MR. TENGAN:

Yes.

This is your reallocation from No. II

Mr. Chair, I believe these were

8

downward reallocations rather than upward; but I

9

will have to go back to -- and verify that.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And so, my question to you,

11

Mr. Director, or whoever is the appropriate one to

12

respond, if -- I'm just trying to put together

13

with -- a need for the Microbiologist III and how

14

how it -- you know, with this -- your need to have

15

your department adjustments.

16

But not only is that interesting that you

17

went from Microbiologist II to I, but the salaries

18

were not more than 12 percent for a Fiscal Year '06

19

request.

20

So, somebody's either getting a real good

21

deal by doing less work for a lot more payor it's a

22

printing error or a error in the amounts that should

23

be in those request columns.

24
25

And so, if you need time to, you know, do the
research to respond to this Committee, I would
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1

appreciate the best response you can provide us,

2

please.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Any response, Director?

4

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, yes, I'd appreciate a opportunity

5

to go back and look at the situation there and

6

report back to the Committee.

7
8

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

And before I recognize you,

Ms. Anderson, Mr. Hokama has the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well, I'm done -- if Members have --

10

want to talk about that specific area of operations

11

which the Microbiologist is, I'm happy to relinquish

12

the floor to other Members, Chair.

13

CHAIR KANE:

And I guess the other question is that on

14

that same page there are no Microbiologist II

15

identified on that page.

16

becomes how is a II going to move to a III when we

17

don't have any current showing on what we have in

18

front of us?

So, I guess the question

19

Anyway, I'll just leave that open.

20

Member Anderson?

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'm just

22

following up on Mr. Hokama's questioning, if we

23

could also find out in their explanation to

24

Mr. Hokama's question, why would they downgrade two

25

Microbiologist II positions to Microbiologist I?
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MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, one of the thoughts that I have is

2

that being able to recruit at the I level as opposed

3

to being able to recruit at the II level because

4

I'm -- I know that we had some fairly new people

5

hired in the past year with minimum experience

6

working in the lab.

7

that's the reason,

8

level as opposed to the II level.

9

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So,

I -- I would think that

the ability to recruit at the I

But how long have we had those

two positions at the II level?

11

MR. TENGAN:

I'm not familiar with that detail.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, go ahead.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tavares?

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chairman?

Ms. Anderson, are you done?

Thank you.

Yeah.

Mr. Chair,

I think that

17

this practice is throughout the County of Maui on

18

this reallocation stuff.

19

I know, as an example,

I -- the one I'm

20

familiar with is a Water Safety Officer I is an

21

entry level position.

22

Officer has gone through the probationary period and

23

has gotten the certification that they need to move

24

forward,

25

Officer II position.

After that Water Safety

they are reallocated to a Water Safety
So,

the Water Safety Officer
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1

is the same person moved up to II where I now is

2

available and is recruited for at the entry level.

3

If you move up into,

let's say, the Water

4

Safety Officer II that becomes a III, a captain,

5

then that has a ripple effect.

6

opens up is the bottom line, the entry level.

7

And actually what

So, sometimes you'll see that and I -- you

8

know,

I think it would be help -- be real helpful if

9

we got personnel to clear

clear it up or explain

10

to us how this process works throughout the County

11

of Maui; but that's normally the way I think -- you

12

want to make sure that the employees that you're

13

training do actually move up as they become trained

14

and more experienced or whatever.

15

you're going to recruit is your entry level so you

16

can start the training on a new person.

17

18

CHAIR KANE:

And then what

Thank you, Member Tavares.
And Member Anderson, go ahead and finish your

19

thought; and then I know that Director Morrison has

20

a comment.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I appreciate what Ms. Tavares

22

just explained and I see the logic behind that but

23

I'm also questioning that -- you know, it appears

24

maybe that once somebody climbs the steps and then

25

leaves County service, then -- then we start from
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1

scratch again and bring somebody at the entry level,

2

like Microbiologist I.
I don't know.

3

It just seems like, you know,

4

we've got all these entry level positions at I; and

5

then it jumps up to one Microbiologist at III and

6

one at IV.

7

So, in other words, every year they're going

8

to be coming in and asking

9

the Council to bring somebody up to a position II

do they have to ask

10

that's not already listed in the budget?

11

constantly reallocating these positions every year?

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Director?

15

MS. MORRISON:

Thank you.

So, we're

Yeah.
Thank you.

Mr. Chair, I'd be happy to work with you

16

and the Budget Committee staff to find a time for

17

the Department of Personnel Services Director to

18

come and talk about this whole issue with regard to

19

these vacancies or any others.

20

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much, appreciate that.

21

may be finding time for that.

22

you.

23
24
25

And we

So, we'll work with

Thank you for offering that.
Member Johnson followed by Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

With regard to the actual salary

range -- and perhaps when you answer us later, you
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1

know, about those two positions, like it's possible

2

that those individuals left and then the one opened

3

up again, you know, because they vacated.

4

I'm looking, though -- and Ms. Anderson and I

5

were kind of questioning, what is a comparable wage

6

in the private sector for somebody who's doing

7

comparable work?

8

because we do have water testing companies because

9

you said we use their services -- are we

Are we also -- and I'm assuming

10

competitive?

11

salaries realistic for the skill level that's

12

demanded of that individual?

Are we not competitive?

And are those

13

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Tengan, are you prepared to respond?

14

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, we haven't really look at, you

15

know, what other labs were paying their people.

16

Right now we're just concentrating on hiring people

17

to work in the labs.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Do you have frequent turnover or

19

is there a -- you know, are your people long-time

20

employees?

21

how they could be long term.

22

MR. TENGAN:

Since you have so many Is, I don't see

Mr. Chair, I would say that our turnover rate

23

in the lab is fairly low.

Most of the employees we

24

have in there have been there for a number of years,

25

some of them even longer than I've been back here on
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Maui, which is nearly ten years.

2

that the turnover is very low in the lab.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So,

that

So,

I would say

and it's just

4

simply that the classification of the particular

5

functions that they do would then determine

6

Microbiologist I; is that correct?

7

MR. TENGAN:

As Member Tavares tried to explain, there are

8

Microbiologists that are -- I would be the entry

9

level to that series.

And so, you know, when

10

somebody is deserving or qualifies and does work at

11

the II level,

12

of that position to that higher level of work.

13

then we would put in for reallocation

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I guess where my confusion is

14

coming in then is because I'm looking at -- you've

15

got a Microbiologist IV and a III.

16

rest of them are at I, which are entry level

17

positions.

And then all the

18

If you have people that are long-term

19

employees, I guess I'm looking at it as a lay person

20

saying, well, wouldn't they be at a II or wouldn't

21

they be at a higher level simply because of their

22

longevity and their expertise rather than having so

23

many at I?

24
25

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, maybe I need to take a step back

and say that we also have Laboratory Technicians.
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1

Most of the -- and it's only recently that we've

2

been promoting people into the Microbiologist class.

3

Most of them -- the older -- I wouldn't say the

4

older ones, but the one that -- the ones that have

5

been with us for some time now have gone through the

6

Laboratory Technician class and then into the

7

Microbiologist class.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Where does the Laboratory

Technician -- oh, I see.

10

MR. TENGAN:

Just below the Microbiologist, right.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So, you're stepping those

12

people, then, up because of their experience into

13

those other classifications; is that correct?

14

MR. TENGAN:

15

work.

Correct, and their ability to do higher-level

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

Mr. Hokama?

Chairman, you know, this will be your

19

first department that we're going through details as

20

well as the program budget.

21

I've been very hard on the department; but listening

22

to the comments of you and other Members

23

be fair to other departments and as well as Water

24

Department, I know you may take a little longer,

25

Chairman.

And, you know, maybe

and to

But part of, I think, the difficulties we
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1

are having is the discrepancies within the document

2

submittals from the details to the summary to the

3

program.

4

Different numbers are appearing regarding the

5

same areas.

6

information we need to work from?

7

And so/ what is the accurate

Obviously the Director seems to be just as

8

surprised when we bring up certain points of

9

discrepancy that we are finding in the details

10
11

that's not part of the program document itself.
So/

I don't know how we can -- I mean/

I'm

12

sure Director Morrison is going to have a nightmare

13

for two months; but for us to make good decisions/

14

we're going to have to find out which number or

15

which figure is the right figure to work from/

16

whether it be position count/ SR ranges/ allocation

17

numbers.

18

But it's difficult for us -- now/

for me -- I

19

want to be straightforward here -- whether I can

20

depend on this information to come up with my sound

21

decision.

22

And so, I just share that as my short

23

analysis of what we have gone through just in the

24

past -- recent past that may be helpful to us.

25

I understand that we are now on our third
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Budget Director within half a year.

2

difficult.

3

doesn't stop for us, Chairman.

4

says you will review and pass a budget by end of

5

May.

I understand that.

It is very

But the clock
The Charter still

And so, with that requirement,

6

I just would

7

ask for your assistance in working with Budget

8

Director Morrison in getting us the right numbers,

9

please.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Member Hokama.

And Ms. Morrison

11

as well as staff has already had the initial

12

discussions on working together to make sure -- when

13

we start identifying any potential discrepancies and

14

trying to work out what the accurate numbers will be

15

but Ms. Morrison?

16

MS. MORRISON:

Yes.

Mr. Chair, with each passing day I'll

17

have more opportunity to get in my usual details

18

familiarity with this budget.

19

should be working with consistent numbers across the

20

board for all of our -- for all of our sakes.

21

department should know what went in the budget, and

22

the Council should know as well.

23

And I agree that we

The

Just on this particular case, I think there

24

is actually a typo on that page.

I think that one

25

of those Microbiologist Is is a II because the
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position shows a 20-F on one and an 18 on the other.
So, that's,

2

for example, a good guess that

3

that may very well be a Microbiologist II position

4

instead of the I that's shown there.
But that's just, as you say, one example.

5
6

And I'll do everything I can to help make sure that

7

we're working with the correct document across the

8

three documents so that we all know what we're

9

talking about.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

Thank you.

Thank you, Director.
Members any additional questions on the

13

specific request of EP expansions?

14

any questions?

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Safety Officer,

Member Tavares.
Mr. Chair, on the Safety Officer

16

positions, I'm going to have to present a question

17

to the Risk Manager to describe the County-wide

18

program for this because I know that a Safety

19

Committee was supposed to be formulated of all of

20

those persons in every department who is charged

21

with responsibility of safety coordinate for the

22

department.

23

departments, the ones with the more, I guess,

24

liveliest functions like heavy equipment and those

25

types of things, that there should be a person

And we are talking about the bigger
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assigned specifically to do that.

2

And whether or not we're going to move into a

3

County-wide safety coordinator in each of the major

4

departments type of position or not, I think that

5

decision needs to be made as a policy on the

6

Administration level.

7

the Risk Manager and/or the Finance Director and/or

8

the Managing Director can kind of address this

9

situation.

And I would hope that either

Each section has somebody who is in charge of

10
11

safety, but the -- each section, we know, then

12

goes -- I don't know what.

13

somebody overall in charge of if for each of this,

14

especially the larger departments.

15
16

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

17
18

There's no hierarchy and

Thank you for your comments.
Director Morrison?

MS. MORRISON:

Once you get a chance to look more closely,

19

you'll see that the Finance Department Risk

20

Management section is also requesting a Safety

21

Officer.

22

either at that time would be a good time to address

23

those issues or at an additional time depending on

24

how the Chair wishes to proceed.

25

And when they come before the Committee,

But I will certainly communicate with him the
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1

issues that were discussed today and where we --

2

that we get into it.

3

would be one opportunity to do so because he is also

4

requesting a position.

5

available at an additional time.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Although, I believe that that

We can also make him

Thank you very much.

Member Tavares, would you like the staff

7
8

under Chair's signature to make the request to the

9

Risk Management office?

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I don't think so since

11

Ms. Morrison said that he's going to be coming here

12

to talk about his Safety Officer.

13

remember what I said, but I think it's -- it's an

14

overall philosophy of what direction we're going to

15

go in.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19
20

I'll try to

Absolutely.
Thank you.

Thank you very much.
Any further questions, Members, Safety

Officer, Pipe Fitter I for the Lahaina district?

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes.

Chairman?
Go ahead.
All right.

Quickly I can appreciate

24

the amount of work -- that seven-mile stretch that

25

needs to be maintained to minimize breakage and
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contamination of the system.

2

understand operationally, it's easier to have that

3

one person be able to do that one job than,

4

say, a request for a Pipe Fitter helper because

5

and, again,

6

easier to have one person that's a Pipe Fitter that

7

can work independently -- and I don't know whether

8

the contract says if you have a Pipe Fitter helper,

9

you still need the Pipe Fitter to assist the helper

I'm just wondering, you know,

10

to do the job, so, in reality,

11

one work assignment.

12

MR. TENGAN:

Just so we can

let's

is it

then two people doing

Mr. Chair, if I may ask Member Hokama, are we

13

talking about a dedicated employee to oversee the

14

operation of that seven-mile stretch of pipe?

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17
18

Proceed.
That's the one, Mr. Director,

for your

Lahaina district.
MR. TENGAN:

Well,

I don't see that assigning a dedicated

19

employee to that seven-mile stretch of pipe where he

20

would, you know, go and check that pipeline every

21

day and be dedicated only to that pipeline.

22

would want somebody who could do that in addition to

23

doing other work that's required out in the Lahaina

24

district.

25

added on as part of the justification for the

We

The seven mile of pipeline was just -- is
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1

additional personnel that, you know, we do have

2

more -- more pipes to take care of.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Can we make the assumption,

4

Mr. Director, that the equipment also -- part of the

5

equipment request is also to incorporate the

6

additional expansion requirements of that Pipe

7

Fitter position?

8

additional saws, service trucks.

9

MR. TENGAN:

Because you're asking for

Mr. Chair, these -- the equipment request

10

here as shown doesn't necessarily represent any

11

piece of equipment that this new employee would be

12

needing.

13

But I would think that, you know, an

14

additional vehicle would probably be required if we

15

have to send that person out to inspect the pipeline

16

occasionally.

17

assigned a chain saw to keep the branches from

18

falling onto the pipeline because there are -- I

19

think there are some areas of the pipeline that may

20

be exposed.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

MR. TENGAN:

23

24
25

Other than that, you know, he may be

And, again, Mr. Director --

You know, he's not directly tied to that one

position.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Oh, no, I understand that.

And -- and

the reason I ask is that, you know, should this
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1

Committee say the department has a -- you know,

2

sufficient justification, we can support a Pipe

3

Fitter 1 position, we don't want to hear next year

4

that, oh, but we didn't give them the equipment or

5

the resources to do the job to take care of

6

assigned

7

which is to main -- help maintain areas in Lahaina,

8

Kahana and Napi1i.

or prior to -- part of the justification

So, if with the position a requirement of a

9

10

all-purpose vehicle

11

it would be helpful to us to know what is those

12

requirements also so that we can

13

buy in, we're going to buy in, we should buy in

14

completely to allow the position to perform.

15

that's all I'm asking.

16

MR. TENGAN:

terrain vehicle is required,

- you know, if we

And

Mr. Chair, I understand Member Hokama's

17

concern.

18

equipment that's listed in here is specifically

19

related to that one position and for that position

20

or that person to be able to accomplish his work.

21

We're not saying that, you know, the

If there is, then they might -- as I say, it

22

might be one of the trucks; but I -- I cannot

23

imagine it being a dump truck or service body truck

24

that that person would be requiring.

25

So, it may be that we do have some older
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1

vehicles that are not -- that are being used as

2

so-called spares when others break down that might

3

be available for use by this employee.

4

I don't see any other pieces of equipment that would

5

prevent that employee from doing his work if it's

6

not approved in this equipment list here.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And that --

And maybe I asked the question wrong,

8

Mr. Chairman, that may be hard for the department to

9

respond.

10
11
12
13

I should ask, what does the Pipe Fitter

need to perform at the maximum capability?
But I understand what you -- what you shared
with us and the response you did give, Mr. Director.
One question -- because we had a comment at

14

one of our district meetings.

15

for your personnel to go and do its job on the

16

County right-of-ways and easements to go to and

17

check the line,

18

trees and -

19

to come in to knock down trees if it's part of the

20

hinderance and maybe a negative impact on the

21

pipe -- the line itself?

22

For your

let's say

trees, does your people trim back

or are you asking for every community

Let's say that the tree is growing too close

23

to the line and with the root system it may cause

24

more breakage than normal.

25

thing is eliminate the tree.

So, maybe the logical
You folks do that --
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1

is that part of the work within the department's

2

scope?

3

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, I don't think they do that on a

4

routine or daily basis; but if we do see some

5

obstruction that might be interfering with our

6

pipelines, then we'll probably follow up on that.

7

As an example, if there are trees growing

8

over the Waikamoi flume and, you know, we see that

9

this could -- could be falling onto the flume and

10

creating some damage, we may go in and prune the

11

tree or trim the tree; but we -- in the past year or

12

so, we have had some unexpected damage to that

13

flumes,

14

couldn't, you know, anticipate.

15

something, you know, could -- that would be

16

affecting our facilities, we would take care of

17

that.

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

But if we see that

Thank you for your comments,

Mr. Director.

20
21

such as land slides, something that we

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you, Members.

It is

22

12:00 o'clock; but before we call for the lunch

23

recess, there are two other positions, the Clerk II

24

and Water Microbiologist II positions.

25

questions?
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1

The Chair would like to wrap up the

2

discussion with the Water Department for the day.

3

Hearing no

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Hokama?
And if you -- if your intention is to

5

finish with the Water Department, Mr. Chair, maybe

6

we can ask the Director -- we are well aware

7

I -- and personally I can feel for you because, you

8

know, it's impacting Lanai also regarding

9

industry-wide concern with available engineers to

and

10

fill positions, whether it's private sector or the

11

County's requirements.

12

engineering positions vacant?

13

MR. TENGAN:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

You state in here four

Five.
Five engineering positions vacant,

15

Mr. Director.

16

the short term whereby you can provide us with -- I

17

don't know -- some kind of incentive that wouldn't

18

be binding forever and ever but incentive, whether

19

it be in various types of compensation, whether it

20

be financial or others, that may help address the

21

needs of the engineering requirements?

22

MR. TENGAN:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is there a mechanism or rather for

In order for us to recruit engineers
In order for your department to

24

perform, whether it be in plan reviews or doing your

25

CIP projects, because we all know, you know, it's
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1

going to be hard for your department to keep working

2

with five less engineers.

3

your stakeholders reports about aggressive CIP

4

forecasts for the near future, you don't have

5

engineers, you're still not going to hit the mark on

6

CIP.

7

MR. TENGAN:

And what we hear from

Mr. Chair, in order to address that concern,

8

we -- I'm taking steps for an internal review in the

9

engineering division to see which kinds of tasks

10

the

11

able to outsource that kind of work, such as plan

12

reviews and project design reviews.

13

- that are potentially

you know, we would be

I have had some discussions with a couple of

14

principals who -- who have or who are affiliated

15

with private engineering firms.

16

you know,

17

work with them whereby they would -- they would

18

assign staff based upon a contract with the

19

department to the department.

20

engineers would come into the department, work under

21

the supervision of our current engineers so that we

22

could make sure that the water system standards are

23

complied with and proceed from there.

24
25

And they feel that,

it -- they're not -- there may be a way to

And possibly these

I believe it's a workable thing.

Now that

some additional space will be available in the fifth
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1

floor and available to the engineering division with

2

the relocation of the planning division, we would be

3

able to proceed with this more seriously.

4

intend to put out our a request for proposals

5

requesting such services from the private

6

consultants.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

And I

I think that's a workable

8

option for your department, Mr. Director.

9

think that's a very viable and in this -

And I
and

10

probably in this envir -- current environment, that

11

may be the better financial option, too.

12

So, thank you for informing us of your

13

efforts in that matter.

14

I'm done.

15
16
17

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
And I will recognize you in a

moment, Member Anderson.
Members, just so you know, I see the time.

I

18

am going to make an adjustment for the start of the

19

afternoon session, okay?

20

anticipate on ending at the same time because I know

21

there's -- that response generated a question from

22

the Chair so -- and I want to ask the question

23

before we close up all the loose ends.

24
25

But we're going to

Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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prompted a question on my part.

2
3

Mr. Tengan, did you say that the Planning
Department will be relocated to the Hokama Building?

4

MR. TENGAN:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

No, planning division.

meant.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

MR. TENGAN:

10

Planning division is what I

Of the Water Department.
Of the Water Department, yeah.

Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

If that's the case, then why

11

wouldn't there be room for another planner to assist

12

in the water use and development plan?

13

MR. TENGAN:

By relocating the planning division to the

14

Hokama Building, that would free space within our

15

department on the fifth floor to accommodate

16

either -- some private engineers coming into the

17

department working under the supervision of the

18

engineering division -- space would be available for

19

these people.

20

available.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We are currently where space is not

I don't think you understand my

22

question, Mr. Tengan.

23

going to the Hokama Building, is there not room in

24

the Hokama Building for another employee to assist

25

in the water use and development plan?

If the planning division is
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MR. TENGAN:

Well, yes,

I -- I think I stated earlier that

2

we intend on filling the vacancies as soon as the --

3

the move is made.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Oh, okay.

Thank you.

And when -- I just -- it's a bit disturbing

5

6

to me.

I know you're being creative; but, you know,

7

as government, we have regulatory review

8

responsibilities for the protection of the public's

9

health and safety.

And I have a problem in

10

outsourcing those regulatory responsibilities to the

11

private sector.

12

MR. TENGAN:

And that's all I'm going to say.

Mr. Chair, if I may respond and that --

13

that's why I stated in my response to Mr. Hokama

14

that we intend on -- and that's why we want the --

15

these engineers to come into our office and do the

16

work so that they could work under the supervision

17

of our -

18

responsibility that Member Anderson stated.

19
20

CHAIR KANE:

of our engineers who have the

Okay.

Thank you.

The Chair's follow-up question is in the same

21

line as Mr. Hokama and Ms. Anderson.

22

identify -- and I'm looking at details 18-14 under

23

services.

24

level budget.

25

I'm trying to

Under contractual services, you have a

So, if we're looking at a shortage of five
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1

engineers unable to fulfill what I think Mr. Mateo

2

earlier talked about as far as being able to achieve

3

the goals of the aggressive CIP and you're talking

4

about outsourcing as a way of offsetting the

5

shortage of engineers, help us identify where you're

6

plugging in additional moneys to pay for that

7

outsource of work.

8
9

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Chair, you know, as -- we would be

outsourcing the work only because we cannot hire

10

engineers.

11

engineers budgeted.

12

cannot fill the vacancies, then those funds would be

13

made available to outsource the work.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

We do have the salaries for these
And so, if we cannot -- if we

And, Members, it comes down to what we

15

discussed in previous years, a separation of A

16

account and Band C account.

17

reopens that discussion as well.

18

recalling those discussions, then it might just

19

bring us right back into that.

20
21
22
23

So, that opens up
So, if Members are

Okay?

Ms. Anderson, your final question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

This member doesn't recall.

What's A and Band C account?
CHAIR KANE:

Your A account is your salaries and wages.

24

Your B account is your operations, and your C

25

account is your equipment.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

So -- and we'll -- you can get clarification.

3

Staff will be more than happy to bring you up to

4

that.

5

assumption.

I -- and the Chair apologizes for making an

Members, it's 12:10.

6

I want to make sure you

7

have your ample time to take care of your lunch

8

needs as well as your personal needs.

9

will be calling a recess; and we'll be reconvening

10

So, the Chair

at 1:45, 1:45.

11

And I want to thank the Water Department for

12

their participation this morning in the discussion.

13

Okay.

14

Mr. Pontanilla?

15

This meeting is in recess

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

oh,

Are we going to have more

16

opportunities to discuss the budget with the Water

17

Department?

18

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, we will be having -- we'll have future

19

dates that are tentatively going to be set up to

20

provide more discussion with the Water Department.

21

Today was primarily for the EP count.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Fine.

Thank you.

So, we'll have more time.
Who are we doing this afternoon?

This afternoon we're going to be talking to
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the Managing Director's office.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And we should be able to end -- we're

4

anticipating ending earlier than 4:30 because we've

5

already taken up the Water EP discussion in the

6

morning session versus the afternoon.

7
8

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I didn't look at my

(inaudible.)
CHAIR KANE:

So -- okay.

10

Ms. Hajnosz,

11

your presence.

12
13

Sorry.

for being here as well.

Okay.
1:45.

14

RECESS:

15

RECONVENE:

16

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much,
We appreciate

Thank you.
Members, we stand in recess until

(Gavel)

12:12 p.m.
1:50 p.m.

(Gavel)

Members, let's reconvene the

17

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting for

18

March 24th, 2005.

19

This afternoon we have with us -- along with

20

our Budget Director, we have our Managing Director,

21

Mr. Keith Regan, with us this afternoon; and he's

22

here to discuss the expansion positions for the

23

Department of Management.

24
25

Members, I believe there are a total of four
expansion positions which you can find on your

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 3/24/05

119

1

details Page 9-9/ which is the actual page/ as well

2

as on your program budgets on Page 11-15.

3

again, these are just references for you.

4

And,

I believe also there's been a handout that's

5

been given to you dated today from Director Morrison

6

regarding the expansion fact sheets for the

7

Department of Management.

8

look at that as well.
With that, Ms. Morrison, if you can, please,

9
10
11
12

And so, please take a

your opening comments; and we'll move from there.
MS. MORRISON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good afternoon,

Members.

13

You've articulated exactly what we are here

14

to talk about.

15

Verkerke from MIS are here to give the best

16

information that they have available and answer your

17

questions.

18
19
20

CHAIR KANE:

And Managing Director and Jacob

Thank you.

Good afternoon, Mr. Regan,

appreciate your presence this afternoon.
MR. REGAN:

Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.

21

having us here today.

22

with --

23

CHAIR KANE:

Please do.

Thank you for

Would you like me to proceed

If you have any opening comments

24

or if you'd like to walk us through the memo dated

25

March 24th, I think that would be appropriate; and
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1

then we'll go ahead and open up for Q and A once

2

you've concluded your comments.

3

MR. REGAN:

Certainly.

4

Members.

5

before you.

6

Thank you, Chair.

Good afternoon,

It's a pleasure to be here this afternoon

This fiscal year, Fiscal Year 2006,

7

Department of Management is requesting your

8

consideration for four expansion positions within

9

its Management Information Systems division of the

10
11

Department of Management.
These four positions, three of which are Data

12

Processing Systems Analysts and one of which is a

13

clerical support position, will really allow us to

14

create an additional level of redundancy and allow

15

us to provide crossover training for our staff in

16

MIS so that we have the ability to share the

17

knowledge that these individuals keep regarding the

18

various programs that we have, meaning software

19

programs that we have throughout the County of Maui,

20

and spread that knowledge out amongst other staff

21

members that we have.

22

expansion request would allow us to be able to

23

expand that and to be able to increase that

24

knowledge base.

25

And right now with this

One of the most difficult things that we're
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1

dealing with right now is creating redundancy

2

because once you lose a person, it's very difficult

3

to gain that knowledge back.

4

that knowledge back.

5

reasons why we're asking for your support in this

6

in the request for these positions.

7

It takes time to gain

So, that's one of the major

Currently as it stands now with the number of

8

Data Analysts that we have or IT staff that we have

9

there's approximately one IT staff member to every

10

95 employees throughout the County of Maui.

11

you know, we provide support services essentially to

12

all departments within the County of Maui with

13

limited support, perhaps, to the Police Department

14

with the expansion of their IT project.

15

I guess, the direction that they wanted to go is to

16

create their own staff as well as, I believe, the

17

Council as well.

18

are -- I'm just giving that number to give you an

19

idea of what we're dealing with on a regular basis

20

is that for every 95 employees that we have, we have

21

one IT support staff member for that employee.

22

And as

And that's,

You have staff, so -- but we

we

This expansion would allow us to get down to

23

about 79 per employee which will allow us to provide

24

additional services in a more timely manner

25

County-wide.
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1

The industry standard right now in this --

2

it's -- I guess may be more of a private industry

3

standard, but right now it's one IT staff member to

4

27 employees in the industry.

5

And based on a recent IT survey, about 75

6

percent of companies -- and I know that we're not a

7

private entity.

8

but approximately 75 percent of companies that are

9

similar in size to the County of Maui have a ratio

I understand we're a public entity,

10

of approximately one IT staff member to 47

11

employees.

12

So, we're trying to improve our services by

13

expanding these Data Analyst positions so that we

14

can reach out and get to the needs and fulfill the

15

needs of our staff, of our County employees.

16

All of these positions are within the MIS

17

division of the Department of Management.

18

we did prepare a dat -- a position fact sheet which

19

we did submit through the Budget Director.

20
21
22
23
24
25

I did

And, Chair, would you like me to review these
individually or what's your pleasure, Chair?
CHAIR KANE:

I'd like you to go ahead and touch base on

the memo that you folks have distributed to us.
MR. REGAN:

Okay.

Certainly.

If we go to the first page

after the cover letter, transmittal sheet, I believe
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it's the Data Processing Systems Analyst III.

2

we're requesting two of these Data Processing

3

Systems Analyst Ills to provide this ongoing

4

application system support which I spoke of a little

5

bit earlier.

6

And

I also -- Chair, if it's okay, I have Jacob

7

Verkerke here, our administrator for that division;

8

and I'd like to ask him to provide a little bit more

9

background and detail in terms of these particular

10

two positions.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MR. REGAN:

13

MR. VERKERKE:

14

Proceed.
Thank you, sir.
Mr. Chair, good afternoon, Members.
The position that Mr. Regan was talking

15

about, the two positions are needed to allow the MIS

16

division to provide better ongoing support to the

17

various departments.

18

Once a new information system has been put In

19

place, we are finding -- we are learning that, of

20

course, the job isn't finished when a new system is

21

put in place.

22

continuing attention from MIS to make sure the

23

business processors get adjusted to match the

24

information systems design and preferred

25

methodologies.

The -- the departments have need for
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1

With turnover in departments that we

2

experience, we find that we're always fighting the

3

risk of backsliding to old established ways that are

4

not necessarily a good match-up the new information

5

systems have installed.

6

business analysis process as it is an information

7

systems analysis process.
And that -- that need continues to exist, and

8

9

So, it becomes as much a

we find ourselves many times frustrated with not

10

having enough resources to really help the

11

departments to continue gaining more and more

12

benefit from these new information systems.

13
14
15

The third Data Processing Systems Analyst
position -MR. REGAN:

Before -- Chair, I'm sorry -- before

16

Mr. Verkerke continues, should we go over the

17

funding justification as well, I mean,

18

this sheet by sheet and then proceed to the next

19

position?

20

CHAIR KANE:

The Chair doesn't have any problem with

21

proceeding in that manner.

22

for us to do that?

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

just complete

Members, any objections

No objections.

Or we can go sheet by sheet and complete a

summary of the requests.

Go ahead.
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MR. REGAN:

We are requesting -- in terms of funding,

2

we're requesting eight months of funding for this

3

position.

4

funding, based on our historical experience with

5

hire -- with the hiring process, we understand that

6

it takes approximately four months to go through the

7

process of creating the position description,

8

recruiting and then finally the ultimate hiring

9

process.

10

The reason for requesting eight months of

So, based on our historical experience, we

11

estimate that it will take approximately four months

12

to get that done.

13

requesting eight months of funding for this -- for

14

this particular position -- in fact, all of the

15

positions.

16

So, that is the purpose of us

We do currently have vacancies within the

17

Department of Management.

18

within the MIS division has five vacancies, and I

19

think that perhaps Jacob could provide additional

20

information.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

MR. VERKERKE:

Department of Management

Mr. Verkerke?
Mr. Chair, the vacancies are largely the

23

expansion positions that we received in the current

24

fiscal year budget.

25

retirement of a staffer.

One vacancy exists through the
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There are several reasons why these positions

2

are still vacant.

3

decided at the start of the fiscal year

4

knew that these positions were going to be available

5

to us, we decided to look at the classification of

6

these positions.

7

One of the reasons is that we
once we

Traditionally most of the analyst positions

8

fall under the category of Computer Programmer

9

Analyst.

And I hinted at a -- at that a little bit

10

in my earlier explanation that we're doing as much

11

business analyst -- analysis as we do IT-type

12

analysis.

13

So, we found a classification within the

14

State's system that's called Data Processing Systems

15

Analyst.

16

analysis of the business process and the information

17

system and much less on programming.

18

And the emphasis is much more on the

And this should help us in recruiting because

19

we found that most of the people that really have

20

programming backgrounds that would be recognized

21

through the Civil Service recruitment process have

22

skills that are really kind of out of sync with the

23

work that we're doing here.

24
25

So, we decided to take the time and create
this class; and we are going to be retitling
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1

existing positions into this class as well.

2

that took some time, and then finally in October we

3

were able to advertise for the recruitment.

4

But

That process was a little bit disappointing.

5

We have only,

I think,

in the final analysis one or

6

two qualified applicants in each of the categories

7

that we tried to recruit at different levels to see

8

where the expertise on this island could be found.
So, we had to go to a subsequent recruitment

9

10

that was completed in February.

11

first of several lists that we can take a look at,

12

and the rest I expect to get next week.

13

bit of luck, in a month or two, we'll have a

14

selection made and employment offer to people.

15

I have received the

So, with a

Next year we shouldn't have to go through all

16

that.

17

the lists have expired or there's not enough

18

opportunities, we can just go straight to recruiting

19

and we don't have to go through the whole

20

administrative process that has taken up most of

21

this year to accomplish.

22

CHAIR KANE:

We'll have lists that we can work off; and if

Okay.

We're going to stop there, Director.

23

And the Chair will open up -- if there's any

24

questions here.

25

in our previous discussion with Water,

And I state that -- because I know
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1

also a lot of discussion regarding the disposition

2

component on the reallocations.

3

through the explanation of Mr. Verkerke,

4

tremendous amount of reallocations that were done.

And as you can see
there is a

So, before we get too far ahead of ourselves,

5

6

I think there's -- the grounds are fertile for

7

questions at this time,

8

misreading what has been presented so far.

9
10
11
12

I think, unless I'm

Anybody like to ask questions starting off?
Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

Gentlemen, good afternoon.

13

MR. VERKERKE:

Good afternoon.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I think just to pick up where

15

Mr. Verkerke just left off a little bit ago,

16

existing vacancies is primarily based on the fact

17

that,

18

productive as you had wanted it to be.

19

one,

the

the recruitment has not been as

Now, you also, at this particular point for

20

the expansion program, are looking at three more

21

positions that -- you know,

22

realistic it is to -- if you're not able to fill it

23

in one year, what difference will another year make

24

to, you know, come up with a more fruitful list

25

available?

I don't know how

Can you comment on that?
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1

MR. VERKERKE:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MR. VERKERKE:

I'm -- Mr. Chair?
Mr. Verkerke.
I believe that the results of the current

4

effort of recruitment will be such that we'll be

5

able to fill all five positions.

6

positions are earmarked for task and skill

7

specializations within MIS division that would not

8

be covered with the expansion positions that I'm

9

asking for.

10

And these

These are people that like dealing with

11

security database, administration support, network

12

engineering support that are core specializations

13

that we try and create within the MIS division

14

because our environment has grown quite complex over

15

the years.

16

These new positions are looking for different

17

skill sets.

18

will have enough people on the list that I expect to

19

receive next week that we can kind of hold that list

20

over and recruit for these three positions starting

21

July 1st.

22

recruitment before too long and start filling up the

23

list with names again.

24
25

I think that with a bit of luck, we

If not, we could start up and do another

The Police Department has participated for
their IT needs in some job fairs, and they reported
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1

to me that there was quite a bit of interest.

2

maybe we have to be a little bit more skillful on

3

how we describe and advertise these positions.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And it would have nothing to do with

5

the skills or the abilities of the applicant.

6

that changed regarding those that you have been

7

trying to recruit versus the request for the

8

expansion?

9

MR. VERKERKE:

So,

Has

I have not rejected a list because they

10

wouldn't have the skills that we're looking for.

11

my planning for these vacancies,

12

assuming that I have to do a lot of in-house

13

training; and as long as there is the aptitude and

14

the experience that gives me confidence that these

15

particular individuals could learn the particular

16

specializations that we need,

17

worthwhile.

18

anyway.

In

I'm pretty much

I think it will be

Most of that is on-the-job training

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

20

last question.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

Chairman,

if I may, one

Proceed.
With -- with the potential of the

23

expansion positions and the fulfilling of the

24

vacancies, do you have ample space in your

25

department to house the additional nine bodies?
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MR. VERKERKE:

I am working on creating that space.

At

2

this point I have our training room that I could

3

convert to office space for the five vacancies I

4

have in this year.

5

Our training room would be relocated to the

6

One Main plaza facility so we can conduct training

7

classes there, and I'm talking to them about leasing

8

a particular location already.
The four additional space -- positions I

9
10

would ask for next year, on the assumption that some

11

of the movements that would be triggered by the

12

requested purchase of One Main Plaza, are going to

13

take place fairly quickly.

14

could move quicker than others.

15

offices that they would vacate have been allocated

16

for my use.

17

Certain departments
Some of the -- the

So, I'm confident that given enough time for

18

all that to play itself out, that I'll have room for

19

these four people.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

23

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Further questions at this time?

Mr. Pontanil1a?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Kind of help

24

me understand that -- the industry standard.

25

it's 1 to 25 in regards to MIS support per number of
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1

employees in a company.

Is it bodies that you count

2

or is it terminals that you count?

3

I know some companies do have their employees

4

utilizing handheld terminals which need MIS support,

5

of course.

6

they do have a single terminal -- terminal located

7

in an office where, you know, maybe ten employees

8

would share.

And the ones that are out in the field,

To say that the ratio is one MIS person for

9

10

every 27 employees, I

11

to accept that.

12

MR. VERKERKE:

- I -- I get hard time trying

Mr. Chair, I understand then your dilemma

13

there; and I

and we looked at the studies that we

14

cited closely.

And they, indeed,

15

of IT staff per employees and not just per

16

workstation.

17

talk about a ratio

And the example you cited, people in the

18

field may be sharing one computer; but each of those

19

employees needs to have the skills, of course, and

20

the support to acquire those skills to use that one

21

shared terminal.

22

network accounts and their own accounts to log into

23

the different applications that they would need to

24

access through that shared terminal.

25

than having one terminal, one user.

And they may all have their own
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If you're supporting, say, half a dozen users

1

2

on one terminal, you may get half a dozen people

3

asking you, how do I do this.

4

for a couple of days.

5

support increases even if there's only one computer

6

sitting on the desk but more people use it.

7

I haven't used this

I forgot what to do.

So, the

The handhelds, you already cited that they

8

require support; and the infrastructure support of

9

that for the handhelds, be it wireless, all that

10

requires support, of course, that doesn't really get

11

reflected in the employee count.

12

So, support for

- we're going on an

13

estimation of about 1,900 County employees; and we

14

have maybe 1,000 PCs.

15

whole County, 1,900 employees, would be more than

16

just 1,000 computers with one person.

17
18
19

The support from -- for the

So, that's why we're -- we're following the
measures used in these studies we cited.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So, am I to understand that one

20

MIS person will also provide training to a number of

21

individuals that are utilizing terminals as part of

22

their responsibility?

23

MR. VERKERKE:

Certain aspect of computer skills are being

24

taught by MIS staff.

25

through the Department of Personnel Services, the

Others are being taught
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training coordinator there.

2

Not everything is available from outside

3

trainers.

4

skills that are being taught by in-house staff.

5

So, there's a certain amount of computer

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Another question that I have is

6

in regards to,

7

putting their time for computerization.

8

part of that particular program that -- knowing

9

that, you know, we're going to be automating our

10

I guess,

11

request?

12

MR. VERKERKE:

I guess, employees electronically
Is this

time sheets, how does that play into your

Well, it provides the justification for

13

going, indeed, with an employee count because at

14

some point when this system is completely

15

implemented, every employee at some point or another

16

will have to interact with the computer system, use

17

one of the terminals available to them and create

18

support issues.

19

And department personnel is planning for

20

support of that particular system to some degree,

21

but MIS will always have a role to play in the

22

infrastructure support in all that.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Question on the

I guess,

the

24

position that are being requested which are Data

25

Processing Systems Analyst III, would that position
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1

remain as a III or looking into the future where

2

you know, we had this problem -- in fact,

3

morning we had this problem in regards to upgrading

4

a position which is higher than what's budgeted

5

here; and come next year a request is made for the

6

same classification.

7

MR. VERKERKE:

this

Mr. Chair, I believe the explanation

8

offered by Member Tavares this morning is very much

9

at point.

10

When I asked for five positions at level III

11

last year, I kind of used an average approach.

12

We're recruiting at the levels II through V, and I'm

13

waiting to find out at what level I can successfully

14

find a suitable candidate.

15

It may be at level IV.

16

anybody at level V.

17

It may be at level II.

I doubt very much we'll find

So, I need to be able to adjust to what's out

18

there in the way of experience because, of course,

19

the compensation tied into these different levels

20

may be a disincentive or an incentive in the

21

recruitment process.

22

Once these people come in and they gain

23

experience, the career path that's laid out for

24

these positions allows for periodic reallocations as

25

their experience and their responsibilities and
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1

their skills; and the familiarity with the

2

organization increases.

3

If there's expansion or if there's departures

4

subsequently and I'd have to fill those positions, I

5

would have to probably go back to a level where I

6

can successfully find somebody that I can go take

7

them through a process of in-house recruitment.

8
9

So, you'll find yourself backfilling your
staff with lower-end positions and slowly bringing

10

them along and developing them in-house.

11

why you keep finding the same -- or many times the

12

same level of position being requested again.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And that's

So, if you do that, as far as

14

the salaries within a given year, what is being

15

budgeted for a particular position, and that

16

position now becomes a higher level, when you go

17

through the budget process, those numbers are not

18

actually identified when you hire or you reallocate

19

a certain position to a higher position.

20

it's happening throughout the County, then I think

21

we may have a problem in that.

22

MR. VERKERKE:

And if

Well, I would have to find the funding to

23

accommodate that within my program budget.

24

don't have the funding for that, I'd have to request

25

the allocation in a future budget request and then
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1

take advantage,

if the funding is being provided, of

2

the opportunity to reallocate the staff.

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

Thank you.

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Molina?
Thank you, Chairman.

Good

afternoon, Mr. Verkerke, Mr. Director.

7

You know, with the amount of movement that I

8

see here in the details, this is really unusual and

9

large.

I presume this -- there's expectation that

10

this will achieve more efficiency and, I guess,

11

reduce that ratio of MIS -- one MIS per County

12

employee from one for every 95 to one to 79.

13

Is there an expectation that there will be an

14

increase in workload as well and also a reduction ln

15

premium pay for personnel in MIS with the additional

16

personnel that you're requesting?

17

MR. VERKERKE:

Mr. Chair, the bulk of the premium pay that

18

we have in the budget right now is to accommodate

19

our obligation to the Police Department to provide

20

24/7 support for their dispatch and records

21

management system, the system that's being replaced.

22

Once that replacement's complete, it will go

23

down; but it won't disappear because the nature of

24

our work, of course, is that if we need to perform

25

maintenance on the network or information systems,
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1

we'd prefer to do that on weekends or after hours

2

and not disrupt the organization any more than we

3

would do at those times already.

4

Yes, the workload and the responsibilities

5

for people will increase as they get reallocated

6

because those reallocations are based on the scope

7

of work and their level of responsibility associated

8

with that.

9

reallocations, they're more of a -- an effort to get

10

everything in line with the new classification I was

11

talking about earlier.

12

MR. REGAN:

13

MR. VERKERKE:

What you see before you, all those

They're not necessarily --

Upward reallocation.
yeah, upward.

They're just kind of

14

across to a different title.

15

financial impact on those.

16
17

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I see.

Thank you.

Thank

you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Molina.

19

before we proceed?

20

Okay.

21

Okay.

So, there's no

MR. REGAN:

Any further questions

Hearing none, Director?

Thank you, Chair.

Moving on to the next page,

22

again, we're looking at a Data Processing Systems

23

Analyst III; and this particular position will have

24

a little bit different role.

25

I'll have -- if you don't mind, Chair, have

And to explain that
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Mr. Verkerke explain

2

CHAIR KANE:

Proceed.

3

MR. REGAN:

for the Members.

4

MR. VERKERKE:

Mr. Chair, this third Data Processing

5

Systems Analyst position -- this position's

6

responsibility would be to help the different

7

departments in their efforts to provide information

8

to the public within the organization to Council.

9

Normally we are pushing access out to the

10

public through the Internet.

11

increased awareness of the public, of course, of

12

what type of data we have and collected and --

13

collecting over the years; and they really would

14

like to get particular reports or data sets out of

15

that.

16

With that comes an

In order to provide that effectively and

17

efficiently, we need to have somebody that has

18

advanced report writing and kind of data-minding

19

skills, somebody that understands where particular

20

pieces of information are contained within the many

21

County systems and has the skills to put it together

22

in a coherent format.

23

The department's now are struggling with

24

that.

25

really have anybody that has had an opportunity

MIS is struggling with that because we don't
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1

to -- to understand the connections between data and

2

these disparate systems that we have.

3

And I think we can help the departments

4

respond to requests from various sources by having

5

this kind of an expertise on board.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MR. REGAN:

Okay.

Go ahead.

Thank you, Chair.

Proceed.
Again, we're requesting

8

eight months of funding for this particular

9

position; and we're requesting that due to the

10

our historical experience with the hiring process.

11

And I -- I won't repeat again; but we have

12

five vacancies currently within the Department of

13

Management, all of which are in MIS -- I'm sorry --

14

five of which are in MIS.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

MR. REGAN:

17

CHAIR KANE:

You know, before you proceed -Yes.
-- with that, the five vacancies, are any of

18

those vacancies over 90 days as we saw in our recent

19

report, in the quarterly report?

20
21
22
23

MR. VERKERKE:

Mr. Chair, these vacancies have been vacant

for pretty much the entire fiscal year.
CHAIR KANE:

These -- you cited one retired and the other

four is what?

24

MR. VERKERKE:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Expansion positions and -These are from last year's budget that we
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1

approved?

2

eight months of funding to start the recruit

3

process?

4

MR. VERKERKE:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. REGAN:

7

That's correct.
100 grand of carryover.

Thank you, Chair.

Anyway, go ahead.

Shall I move on to the

final position?

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

MR. REGAN:

10

And the funding that we gave you was for

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you, Chair.

Our final position

that we're requesting your consideration on --

11

CHAIR KANE:

Excuse me, Mr. Regan, I'm sorry.

12

MR. REGAN:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yes.
Mr. Pontanilla?
Thank you.

The number of

15

County systems that we support presently is how

16

many?

17
18
19
20
21

MR. VERKERKE:

The number of information systems or the

number of computers?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Computers -- of our systems

that we have programs that MIS supports.
MR. VERKERKE:

I couldn't give you an actual accurate

22

count right now.

We have probably six or seven

23

corporate level systems that are used by many

24

departments, and we have a number of special purpose

25

applications like for the Office on Aging,
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1

Case Management department! Prosecuting Attorney and

2

such.

3

I can get you an accurate count if you wish.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah! and also! along with

4

that! future enhancement to the system that we

5

presently be -- presently have within the County.

6

MR. VERKERKE:

You bet.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

MR. REGAN:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Regan! go ahead.

Thank you! Chair.

I'm continuing on to the

10

Clerk III position.

11

position! and if I may have Mr. Verkerke provide a

12

overview of the expansion justification.

13

MR. VERKERKE:

We are requesting a Clerk III

Mr. Chair! one of the projects we've been

14

working on for a number of years now -- and it has

15

been -- it's shown much less progress than we had

16

hoped is the effort to implement a document

17

management imaging system in the County.

18

There are a number of reasons why this has

19

taken longer than we had expected! but one of the

20

big reasons is that a lot of departments find

21

themselves faced with the dilemma of a considerable

22

spike in labor requirements at the onset of such an

23

effort to convert the department to scan images and

24

documents and then retrieve them.

25

they have a hard time requesting expansion positions

And! of course!
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1

for something that may only be a need for about a

2

year or so.

3

So, what we hope to do within MIS is create a

4

small team of staff that can be deployed to these

5

different departments to the early days of an effort

6

to implement the document management system there

7

with the skills to operate the scanning equipment,

8

with the skills to clean up source data, old

9

documents, what have you and with enough

10

understanding of how to develop an indexing system

11

so that the retrieval of these documents will,

12

indeed, be as efficient as we hope it will be.

13

And this person -- after discussions with

14

department personnel, we felt that a Clerk III

15

position would be the appropriate classification for

16

someone that would provide these services throughout

17

the County.

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

MR. REGAN:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

MR. REGAN:

Thank you.
Mr. Chair?
Mr. Regan?
Thank you.

For this position we're also,

22

again, requesting eight months of funding due to our

23

historical experience in the hiring process.

24

are requesting for eight months of funding.

25

If I may, I just want to add that this
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1

particular digital imaging that Jacob is talking

2

about has a lot of applications; and I can speak

3

from experience coming from the Finance Department

4

how valuable something like this would be for that

5

particular department.

6

And I speak about this because I've been in

7

situations where -- working closely with staff at

8

DMV, for instance, I can take that as a perfect

9

example why this is an important addition in terms

10

of being able to approve -- improve efficiency

11

within the County.

12

At the DMV, if you ever go down there, if you

13

have an opportunity, you'll notice that when they

14

have to retrieve documents, they physically have to

15

get up out of their chairs and go to the filing

16

cabinets, the many filing cabinets that we have in

17

the back over there, to locate documents if they

18

need to review signatures or if they need to review

19

prior information that may have been submitted on

20

past -- on past experiences with the DMV.

21

But this is a process that takes a lot of

22

time.

They have to get up out of their chairs.

23

They have to go look for it.

24

back.

25

someone else to refile it back in the proper area.

They have to bring it

Then they have to put it somewhere for
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So, it's very cumbersome.
And what we would like to do with this is to

2
3

be able to push forward this DMV project to digitize

4

these documents so that rather than a customer

5

service rep having to get up off of his or her chair

6

to go and locate these files and take up valuable

7

time,

8

directly from their -- from their system.

they'll be able to access that information

So, this is -- this is an example of what

9
10

we're talking about when we're kind of giving you an

11

idea of where we're going with this digital imaging.

12

So, I just wanted to share that, Chair.

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

open.

15

Okay.

Thank you.

Members, the floor is

Member Johnson?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

For the positions, I was just

16

curious, could you -- because we only have eight

17

months salary, could you give us the full annualized

18

salary for each one of those positions for the

19

classifications that we're looking at so we kind of

20

know what it's going to be in future years?

21

MR. VERKERKE:

Mr. Chair, for the Data Processing Systems

22

Analyst III level, the annualized salary would be

23

$36,360.

24
25

For the Clerk III, it would be just shy of
24,000, 23,952 to be precise.
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1
2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
eight months?

3

MR. VERKERKE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

So, that's the annualized, not the

That's correct.
You can actually find people to do

this type of work for that kind of money?

6

MR. VERKERKE:

I -- it's not easy, but we keep trying.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Do you have any idea what

8

comparable salaries would be in the

9

let's say in the private sector?

10
11
12
13

MR. VERKERKE:

In my moments of despair,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So, I take that to mean it's

substantially more?
MR. VERKERKE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

I look it up; but

then I throw it away right away.

14

16

you know,

Yes, it is.
Like 30 percent more, 40 percent

more?
MR. VERKERKE:

I think the expectation for many recent IT

18

graduates is that they start somewhere around 40 or

19

$50,000.

20

for almost ten years to make that kind of money.

21

You would have had to work for the County

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

This is a problem that we are

22

going to continue to have if we want to keep and

23

retain qualified employees.

24

these are the costs for the salaries.

25

MR. VERKERKE:

In terms of -- now,

Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

In terms of the benefits that go

2

along with these salaries,

3

include the benefits; is that correct?

4

5
6

MR. VERKERKE:

That's correct.

these obviously don't

This is just straight

wages.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So, do you have any

7

ballpark figure what the worth of the benefits would

8

be,

9

just our baseline benefits?

MR. VERKERKE:

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

MR. REGAN:

50 -- I'm sorry, Mr. Chair?
58 percent?

Yeah, correct.

Yeah, you are correct.

12

percent is correct.

13

mUltiply it by that and

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

MR. REGAN:

16

So, you take 58 percent,

IT--

that would be your addition that you would

add to the salary.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

MR. REGAN:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

58

So,

I'd mUltiply times 1.58?

Correct.
Okay.

And so,

that may in some

measure

21

MR. REGAN:

Equate to what it is.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

equate.

Have you discussed

23

with Personnel Services or with, you know,

24

the possibility of looking at trying to at least put

25

us on a level playing field with private sector?
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1

MR. REGAN:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MR. REGAN:

Mr. Chair?
Go ahead.
Thank you, Member Johnson.

One of the

4

problems that we're faced with -- and this isn't

5

just here in MIS but it's state-wide is that we're

6

on a state-wide system.

7

state-wide, I guess, position that is rated at a

8

certain level.

9

would affect it state-wide essentially because, you

And so,

And so, this is a

for us to go outside of that

10

know,

11

Processing Systems Analyst III, they're going to

12

make 36,360.

13

if you go to Oahu and they have a Data

I mean, it's -- it's comparable.

So, that's one of the problems that we have

14

is that we're kind of pigeonholed into this -- into

15

these wages.

16

system, I'm --

17

So, short of breaking out of that

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Have you ever considered going to

18

a contract -- contracting these individuals through

19

the employment -- you know,

20

been done in other areas before where you actually

21

go to an employment service and you contract with

22

that employment service for these employees.

23

you ever explored that possibility?

24
25

MR. REGAN:

Uh-huh.

you, Chair.

I know that this has

Yeah, I'm sorry.

I'm sorry.

Have

Thank

I was just conferring with Corporation
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1

Counsel.

2

I heard this was whether or not we had any issues

3

regarding like the Konno decision, and it would

4

really depend whether or not the service that they

5

are providing was a specialized service that another

6

civil servant was not able to provide or was not

7

currently providing for the County, so --

8
9

One of my concerns right off the top when

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And the reason I'm asking is

because if you have people -- and obviously these

10

are very specialized services where not every person

11

is going to have that level of skill; and

12

particularly with our constraints with regard to

13

recruiting people from the State of Hawaii, I really

14

believe that we're really at a disadvantage when

15

we're competing in the overall marketplace because

16

of this type of constraint.

17

I don't know what your thoughts are; but if

18

we want to keep and retain employees, we have to use

19

a different approach.

20

MR. REGAN:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

MR. REGAN:

Mr. Chair?
Director?
Thank you.

One of the things that I was just

23

reconfirming with Jacob just moments ago was that if

24

we are not able to find somebody to fill this

25

position, I believe, either by the second or third
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1

time,

2

range.

that we are able to go out and hire among the

So, we're -- for instance, if you have an

3

4

SR-20, which this Data Processing System Analyst III

5

is rated at, SR-20, you can go anywhere along the

6

range to try to attract someone to apply, basically.

7

So, there are those options; but we have to go

8

through the processes first.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And that's what takes quite a long

10

then to secure people for these positions and that's

11

why oftentimes they become vacant for long periods

12

of time.

13

MR. VERKERKE:

Let me add, please, another option that

14

pops up through this process, if there's a number of

15

failed recruitments to go recruit out of state and

16

advertise on the Mainland, it's a little bit of a

17

two-edged sword because we find people thinking that

18

they're going to come to Maui and make an acceptable

19

amount of money and have a wonderful time.

20

as soon as the reality of paying the bills on Maui

21

hits them, they're gone again.

22

And then

And so, the investment and training that

23

we're typically faced with, I'm looking for somebody

24

that really already has established roots here in

25

the state at least, if not on Maui, so I have a
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1

reasonable degree of confidence that I will have

2

these people available to me long enough to complete

3

the training and get the benefits out of that.

4

So, it's a kind of a balancing act that we go

5

through; but the salary levels state-wide are not a

6

big incentive.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

That's for sure.
I know that for -- our Corporation

8

Counsel periodically will have people that are with

9

the university who are going through -- you know,

10

like law clerks or they're going to school and

11

actually -- it's almost like a training program, if

12

you will.

13

with the university and bring someone on board who

14

would want the practical experience to satisfy that

15

requirement as part of their educational

16

requirement?

17

MR. REGAN:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

MR. REGAN:

Is there a possibility for us to partner

Mr. Chair?
Proceed.
Thank you, Member Johnson.

I know that in the

20

Finance Department we use interns, I think, which is

21

what you're speaking of, regularly because we want

22

to encourage our youth who are going through various

23

programs at our local community college to

24

participate in County government and become

25

interested in County government, hopefully maybe one
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day decide to come and work for our government.

2

So/

is it possible?

Sure/

it's possible.

Is

3

it something that we would look at?

I would say yes

4

because we have an excellent program at Maui

5

Community College that are -- that is really turning

6

out what I perceive as some really skilled students.

7

So/ hopefully some of those students would be

8

interested in applying once they graduate with the

9

County of Maui; but I think an intern program is

10

something that we should be looking at.

11

sure that we have anyone on staff right now doing

12

internship but --

13

MR. VERKERKE:

I'm not

Mr. Chair/ if I may add/ we have used an

14

MCC Co-op Program for a number of years; and one of

15

our recent hirees in the technical support area was/

16

indeed/ somebody that came to us through that

17

program and we're very fortunate to have him.

18

an exceptionally skilled person.

19

He's

For the professional series category of

20

positions like the Data Processing Systems Analyst/

21

we run into the difficulty that MCC doesn't offer/

22

at this point, a four-year college degree; and

23

that's kind of the minimum entry level for that

24

series.

25

So/ you have that gap of two years.
And if they work in the private sector for
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1

two years after getting an AA degree,

2

than half the people in my staff.

3

not interested in coming back to work for us.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Yeah.

they make more

So, then they're

I really appreciate

5

you sharing that information because I'm trying to

6

understand when I'm looking at the wage and then

7

when I'm looking at the skill level and they don't

8

seem to kind of mesh.

9

And I know what some of these people have to

10

go through to get their education

11

I mean, we have staff people that have gone through

12

their loan process to just get the education; and

13

they're still making a substandard -- in some cases

14

they're making a wage that would be below what they

15

would get in private sector and paying back their

16

loans on top of it.

17

even the loans.

So, it really concerns me if we're serious

18

about tapping into our local resource pool for

19

employment opportunities such as this and

20

particularly with MEDB being so into, you know, the

21

technology field.

22

to -- within our system I'm more than willing to

23

think outside the box for any kind of pilot program

24

that we might entertain to partner with MEDB in

25

utilizing some of the people that are even sometimes

I just think somehow we've got
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1

temporarily housed here where we'd be able to

2

benefit even through -- I don't know -- even a

3

sharing program, if you will, of coming on board and

4

helping to train.
So, I just -- you know, I know I'm getting

5

6

off the subject again; but it really troubles me

7

when I see the wage.

8

position, but what is the hope of the retention even

9

though we go to the expansion position?

10
11

I'm looking at the expansion

So, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Member Johnson.

And I would like

12

to note as part of the discussion that 58 percent,

13

which comes out as benefits, with Mr. Verkerke's

14

comments of entry being approximately 40 to $50,000,

15

the entry on the ones that we have are looking at --

16

the level III folks,

17

conversion, you're looking at just under 57,000

18

which is just a little more than entry level.

19

the entry level, with the

Somebody who's a IV, you're looking at almost

20

$74,000 including the perks.

21

and we do have currently a couple of Vs mixed in.

22

So, I just used the number -- kind of a median

23

between the high and the low of the Vs; and they're

24

making, converted, almost $90,000.

25

And somebody as a V

So, I wanted to put that in there that along
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1

with the protections of Civil Service, whether you

2

agree with it or disagree with it, like it, don't

3

like it, there's some benefits there as well.

4

it -- I wanted to also point out that there are some

5

stability issues for people who really have a career

6

set in mind and want to move forward that it's being

7

provided.

And

And I think the key comes down to the actual

8

9

recruitment and bringing in the quality people.

10

Because of the Civil Service and because of the

11

protections that are offered, if you don't bring in

12

good people, then we end up getting stuck with bad

13

people.

14

another critical point, so, anyway,

15

the discussion.

16
17

And so, that's where -- that's a lot -just to add to

Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Thanks for that

18

information because that is, I think, a critical

19

point to remember.

20

Does the department, when they are

21

recruiting, emphasize this fact that it's -- the

22

package is quite nice?

23

outside private sector maybe the fringe benefit

24

packages are only around 25 to 30 percent.

25

CHAIR KANE:

And from what I understand

Mr. Verkerke?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 3/24/05

1

156

MR. VERKERKE:

Mr. Chair, Member Tavares, during

2

recruitment I do like to emphasize the stability of

3

the employment with the County.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

MR. VERKERKE:

Uh-huh.

As we saw after 9/11 in the hotel industry,

6

there was massive layoffs; and we didn't have to

7

worry about that in MIS.

8
9

And the people, once they're in MIS or in
County employment, begin to appreciate what these

10

benefits really mean to them,

11

and all that and the vacations.

12

the medical coverage

But as a new person trying to consider

13

whether or not to accept employment, usually the

14

main factor is that paycheck amount and that -- we

15

can do -- probably do a better job of emphasizing

16

all these non-monetary benefits or at least

17

non-monetary to the employee -- prospective employee

18

that we need to emphasize.

19

County a lot more than what it advertises the

20

position at.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I know it costs the

I mean, because we have such great

22

packages for our employees, I think we should be

23

accentuating that.

24

the salary is we say, you know, with the benefit

25

packet, the compensation package is X.

And when we're advertising what
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salary is such.

You know,

that might draw their

2

attention to it because remember as a, you know,

3

really young kid looking for a job -- you know, I

4

was only concerned with what was my take-home pay

5

going to be.
But as you get older, you're -- then you

6
7

start saying, you know,

if I had worked for that

8

company instead of the one I worked for,

9

have been really ahead because now I don't have --

10

you know, they pay half my medical or whatever the

11

case may be.

I would

So, perhaps just, you know, adding a couple

12
13

lines in the recruitment that accentuate the fact

14

that the benefit packages are tremendous, much less

15

talking about the job stability when you work for

16

government.

17

Where else can you get paid vacation for, you know,

18

20 days in your first year?

19

MR. VERKERKE:

That's why people want government jobs.

Yeah,

Nowhere that I know of.

the only thing I could add to that,

20

perhaps, is that in talks with DPS,

21

in recruiting are not just limited to the highly

22

specialized MIS jobs.

23

across the board.

24
25

the difficulty

They're having this problem

So, that might be something to suggest to the
DPS that they emphasize this.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

And I think you admitted in your

3

opening comments that recruiting because Police --

4

and you're sharing that Police may be doing a little

5

better job and you folks need to refine that

6

approach and this may be one of the areas that could

7

be considered.

8

what the request is before us.

9

Member Anderson?

10

Anyway

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I

that's -- that's extra to

Member Hokama

l

you follow.

I just wanted to follow up with

11

what Member Tavares was saying.

12

know if this is -- I don't know what the Civil

13

Service restrictions are; but it seems to me that

14

you could actually attach a monetary value to the

15

benefits.

16

In other words

I

If -- and I don't

this position would pay X

17

amount of dollars plus X amount of dollars in

18

benefits annually.

19

it is for people.

20

You know

l

SOl

that really hits home what

it's one thing to saYI you know

l

21

generous vacation and medical benefits; but it's

22

another thing to put a monetary value on it because

23

actually I was offered a job not long after I went

24

to work for Mr. Nishiki and it looked pretty good on

25

the surface as a take-home pay.
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1

and figured out the monetary value of the benefits I

2

was getting working for the County, I just -- I

3

didn't even go for the interview.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6
7

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama?

Let's get back to the expansion

positions.
CHAIR KANE:

Well, before we go any further,

the reason

8

the Chair let the discussion go on is because it's

9

obvious that there is a question about recruitment

10

and the amount of time that's being provided, the

11

eight months, because that discussion came up

12

earlier.

13

Mr. Verkerke's problem with -- or the department's

14

problem with recruitment, we're sitting with a

15

year -- almost a year now and they still haven't

16

gotten the five vacancies that we gave them last

17

term.

18

And because what was presented as far as

So, the Chair did allow for extensive

19

discussion here because it may result in us not

20

looking at all of the positions that are being

21

requested because if they cannot go out and get

22

recruitment, then why are we going to be putting an

23

additional four positions on?

24

So, anyway, the Chair just wanted to make

25

that clear; and, Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you for your

2

comments.

3

your statement there/ Chairman; but that's for

4

another time in that process.

I can come up with my own conclusions to

My question to you/ Mr. Verkerke/ is have you

5

6

talked to personnel and seen if approaching how to

7

address MIS needs can be done from -- let's say

8

through the various positions in the other

9

departments and put in a component of the minimum

10

qualifications that you need two years experience or

11

education in general computer skills whereby

12

employees that are working for Public Works or Parks

13

or Housing already comes at a certain minimum skill

14

level whereby that -- the requirements that are on

15

your division is lessened because you're not dealing

16

with people that can do everything else but the

17

computer skills.

18

training at ground zero.

19

consideration of an approach?

20

MR. VERKERKE:

Then you have to do your basic
Has that been a

Mr. Chair/ we've had a long-standing

21

arrangement between MIS and personnel as to

22

different programs that we suggest and they manage

23

for us in training County employees to acquire to

24

maintain basic computing skills.

25

And that, I think, is bearing fruit.
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1

type of calls that come into the help desk have

2

shifted from how do I turn this thing on to how do I

3

get more out of it.

SOl as these skills of the employees

4
5

increase

6

even more with what they have in front of them

7

increases also.

8
9

l

their curiosity and their desire to do

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And since you brought up that

very important comment -- and I'm happy to hear

10

we've improving the skill levels

11

you can say to us this afternoon that some -- the

12

questions you're getting is how can I get more out

13

of the system.

14

l

especially when

SOl you've been with mel in a senseI for

15

years alreadYI terms

16

alreadYI Mr. Verkerke.

17

continued advocacy for security.
Saying that

18

l

I

various multiple terms

SOl you understand my

within the positions that you

19

have been authorized by Council and -- in your

20

request

21

external or internal penetration of the system?

22

have -- is -- is that not part of the consideration

23

of expansion?

24
25

MR. VERKERKE:

I

where are we within the security of either
And

The vacancies that I have in the current

year's budget will allow me to hire a staffer who's
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1

main focus will be to manage security issues for the

2

County as far as IT goes.

3

I'm fairly optimistic that, indeed, I will

4

find somebody from previous rounds of interviews

5

that in earlier years -- some of these names keep

6

coming back, that I can find somebody that is

7

suitable for training in this.

8

little bit of time, of course, to get that person

9

fully responsible for the security.

It will take a

10

In the beginning of the year I had not

11

anticipated that I'd be sitting here today having to

12

report that I haven't filled that vacancy yet.

13

I held off on commissioning an internal security

14

assessment In the hope that I would have that person

15

on board.

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

MR. VERKERKE:

So,

Okay.

Because I wanted to accomplish a knowledge

18

transfer for this new person and not have to engage

19

somebody for that

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MR. VERKERKE:

22

Uh-huh.
two times perhaps.

That doesn't mean in the meanwhile we haven't

23

worked on security issues.

24

products and software that have helped us to improve

25

the security, not to the level where you and I would

We have acquired some
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1

like it to be; but it's -- it's making small

2

progress.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So, then in your response --

4

and thank you for being very upfront and to your

5

Director for allowing what I consider a very

6

straightforward candid response from your -- from

7

your division head.
Two questions that I'll ask -- because it's

8

9

happened in other departments, too, with vacancies.

10

Has your list of comparable or -- maybe I should say

11

qualified applicants have gone through the period

12

whereby the list is now outdated and thereby you

13

need to go through a whole complete process from

14

ground zero again?

15

MR. VERKERKE:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

No, these are brand-new lists.
It's a brand-new list because the list

is only good for X period of months.

18

MR. VERKERKE:

It's good for one year, I believe.

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. VERKERKE:

Right.

And so, that's

in my earlier comments, I

21

expressed some hope that if, indeed, these lists are

22

such that I could go back to it for recruitment --

23

recruitment for any expansion positions that you

24

would grant me in next year's budget, I would not

25

have to wait two or three months that it would take
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to establish that list.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Because my next question to you

3

then as part of the Department of Management -- and

4

I think I have shown my support through the years --

5

MR. VERKERKE:

Sure.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

of the need of MIS to be able to do

7

its job the best it can, not as good as it can but

8

at the best that it can.

9

And, again, being a County that is a member

10

of our national organization and our ability to deal

11

with the industry leaders, whether it be the McAfees

12

or the Nortons and all of those big industry

13

leaders, is it still an option for us to go get a

14

managed contract by an industry professional --

15

because you and I chatted about this in the past

16

put in the system that we need at the level we want,

17

implement it and then give them, as well as the

18

Department of Management, the time for, one,

19

knowledge transfer and the ability to get the

20

qualified employees in place?

21

Because in managed contracts, for me, I

22

expect them to work themselves out of a job if we go

23

that route.

24

are -- knows that they have a very definite short

25

timetable.

And I think those that provide us

They're there for their expertise.
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1

They're there to implement a program.

2

to help you train the people you can find,

3

they leave unless you keep them on in some kind of

4

support role down the road.
But is -- you know,

5

They're there
and then

since you have the

6

vacancies, you're asking for more,

7

answer probably then a managed contract option?

8

9

MR. VERKERKE:

is the short-term

A managed contract option should be one of

several options that come out of an assessment of

10

vulnerability.

11

yet,

12

would be the most appropriate option for us at this

13

time.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16

Not having performed that assessment

I'm not really sure if I can tell you that that

We did the external penetration

assessment, right, Mr. Verkerke?
MR. VERKERKE:

And we had a little bit of an internal

17

assessment in the context of Department of Water

18

Supply.

19
20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We -- we never did complete the

County-wide internal assessment?

21

MR. VERKERKE:

Not County-wide, no, we didn't.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah.

And, again,

I bring that up as

23

an option of what I would like you and the Director

24

to think about because we have seen other

25

entities -- and heaven forbid, but disgruntled
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1

employees from the internal disrupting the system,

2

putting in a component, whether it be a Trojan or

3

let's (inaudible) a type of virus because of access

4

through the security system concerns me because

5

there's too many things this County is dependent

6

upon for first response as well as required

7

infrastructure services, what -- and more than

8

likely it's water and sewer.

9

So, I have my strong security concerns that

10

I'm more than happy to do my part in supporting

11

reasonable resources to take care of that concern.

12

And so, I bring it up as part of your request for

13

expansion or how to deal with your expansion request

14

because I think some investment is better than a lot

15

of catch-up in a situation that

16

heard about how people have lost files, whether it

17

be personnel files or anything else, payroll files.

18

It is too damaging for this County to have lost

19

records.

20

MR. VERKERKE:

you know, we've

I think the only thing I can add to your

21

comments, I guess, is to note that we have not

22

included any funding for such a management contract

23

in the request.

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

MR. VERKERKE:

Okay.

So--
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is there a need for us to finish the

2

internal assessment, Mr. Verkerke or Mr. Director?

3

Because I'm more than happy to support that

4

personally because one of the threats is also not

5

only from the outside, it's from the inside.

6

And many of us practice poor internal

7

security practices.

You know,

8

really be logging off so that if you want to go back

9

on my office PC, you got to put in -- you got to log

10

in your password, okay?

11

guilty of that at times, too.

12

I mean,

You know,

I should

I mean,

I'm

So, you know, I can understand those that may

13

have -- and this building is not the most secured

14

building.

15

very candid because we need to address this serious

16

matter.

17

Okay.

We all know that.

We're being

So, if you tell me today, Mr. Verkerke -- if

18

the Council believes that we need to finish internal

19

assessment and funding needs to be provided, then

20

tell me because I -- as one member of nine,

21

going to tell you now I'm going to support -- I'm

22

willing to support that reasonable request.

23

MR. VERKERKE:

I'm

Well, I believe that if indeed, my

24

assessment of what's happening with the ongoing

25

recruitment is fairly accurate, I will have somebody
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1

on board before the end of this fiscal year who will

2

be assigned to that responsibility.

3

So, it would be very appropriate to start

4

that internal assessment in the new fiscal year; and

5

I welcome your support to do that.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

You would need to help the

7

Committee then to understand what kind of resource

8

it requires to do a complete internal assessment.

9
10
11
12

MR. VERKERKE:

I'd be happy to provide that.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you very much.

Thank you,

Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

13

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Members, the Chair's going to call for a very

14

brief recess.

15

then we'll go ahead and continue and wrap up this

16

discussion.

17

3:00 o'clock.

18

RECESS:

19

RECONVENE:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21
22

We'll reconvene at 3:00 o'clock, and

Okay.

So, we'll be in recess until

(Gavel)

2:54 p.m.
3:06 p.m.

(Gavel)

session.

Okay.

Members, we're back in

It's five after 3:00.

The floor is open for additional questions to

23

the Managing Director or Mr. Verkerke regarding the

24

four EP positions.

25

Members?

Any additional questions,

Member Tavares?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, my question actually was on

2

their organizational chart.

3

talk about it now or if -- if they were going to

4

come back or should I just do it in writing?

5
6

CHAIR KANE:

I don't know if we can

Why don't you provide us a little more

background to your question

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

-- and then we can see if
It's

in the program budget on

10

Page 11-5 it gives the organizational chart for the

11

Department of Management.

12

through different sections before; and I noticed

13

that under administration, there's an Executive

14

Assistant at an EM-5.

15

Systems is an EM-5.

16

SR-26.

And Energy Program Coordinator is an R

17

SR-4

24.

18

And I was kind of going

Management Information
Then you get to GIS, it's an

I'm sorry.

Is there any movement to get your GIS systems

19

person upgraded to at least an EM 3?

20

does appear like it's a division head because it

21

does -- he does have personnel.

22

important part of our management systems.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. REGAN:

25

I mean, it

And it's a very

Director, go ahead.
Chair, thank you.

I'd like to have an

opportunity to please provide that information to
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the committee in writing if that's --

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MR. REGAN:

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And another question -- I'm sorry.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead --

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR KANE:

10

Okay.

That's fine.

-- appropriate.

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

Go ahead.

The question maybe --

-- Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

-- if you think about it, I'll put

11

the question in writing.

12

that's under your department -- your department, you

13

know, we've been hearing about all of the costs for

14

increases in gasoline and electricity and all of

15

that.

16

implemented by your energy coordinator that looks at

17

ways that we can reduce our energy use related to

18

these high costs?

19

On your energy program

Are there any programs that are being

And if you -- if maybe I can just tell you

20

that and then I'll put it in writing unless you have

21

a comment or if

22

comment at this time.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. REGAN:

25

Mr. Chair, if you would allow a

Let's proceed.
Thank you, Chair.

Go ahead.
We -- we would be coming

back, I believe, to speak about operations at some
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1

point in time later on either this month or ln

2

April; but I can tell you that our energy

3

coordinator is working on various projects but I

4

would, again, prefer to follow up in writing with

5

you with specifics, if at all possible.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

MR. REGAN:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

(Inaudible.)

Oh, I'm sorry.

Yeah.

Ms. Tavares -- yeah, it looks like you're

going to be here on the 31st scheduled --

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

and that's more -- the intention was

12

operation -- operating changes in the budget.

13

mean, if there's some discussion that provide that

14

time there.

15
16

18

MR. REGAN:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

MR. REGAN:

22

I'm looking at all these binders,

and I'm not looking at my calendar.
CHAIR KANE:

21

If not, we can find another --

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

So, I

Sorry.

No problem.
Chair?
Yes, go ahead.
We would be happy to provide answers to those

questions, though.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.

Are you -- you're --

23

you need us to send you the questions in writing or

24

are you able to --

25

MR. REGAN:

I think based on what I'm hearing -- I'd
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1

prefer to get them in writing r but I can have the

2

coordinator begin putting together his answer so

3

that it will be -- we can turn it around quickly.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Member Tavares r for budget

5

staff's saker if you can just restate the

6

information --

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

them.

Okay.

-- that you'd like to get in your writing to
Okay.

Great.

Thank you very much.

10

Further discussion at this timer Members r on

11

the EP count that we have before us this afternoon?

12

Mr. Hokama?

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just a couple points butr Chairman r

14

just one question since -- just to -- for me to

15

finish on Ms. Tavares' one r I would ask if we can

16

then also then

17

coming up particularly with fuel costs and whatnot r

18

that we put it in relation to other items so we can

19

have a sense of comparison as well as the

20

progression because -- just very shortr

21

Mr. Chairman r media makes a big r big issue about the

22

price of gas, fuel costs; and it should be a

23

concern.

24
25

- because of the cost that keeps

But when you look at -- compared to price of
food r compared to price of bottled water, you'll
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1

find it more than likely, unless my information is

2

wrong, on the lower end of the spectrum.

3

not what makes the headlines.

4

So,

But it's

to get a perspective of energy and

5

everything else, that might be helpful for us to

6

make some decisions.

7

Regarding the expansion, Mr. Chairman, it --

8

if I may,

9

9-12,

I'm looking at Page 9-11 on the details,

9-13.

And I bring this up, Chairman, because

10

it also, on the justification, talks about expansion

11

positions.

12

departments as Corporation Counsel, Fire and Safety,

13

Finance, but just -- is expansion position.

14

will you allow questions in this area at this time?

15

CHAIR KANE:

Although, it's in relation to other

So,

The intention of the Chair was to discuss the

16

four -

17

the Management's office which is what we have before

18

us.

19

the EP count expansion for the managers --

Because it's listed in the details within the

20

Management Information Systems program and,

21

because we don't have any particular time

22

constraints, Mr. Hokama,

23

with providing that latitude.

24
25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I think,

the Chair has no problem

Thank you.

And, again,

I just

want to -- if not today, when would we take it up
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1

because as we all note it is -- for whatever reason,

2

the budget has been presented so that this is under

3

Department of Management as far as equipment

4

expansion for expansion positions.
Okay.

5

Although the position is in a

6

different department, again, for whatever reason,

7

it's placed under Director Regan's department

8

regarding equipment.
So, maybe, one, he can explain to us is this

9

10

the format that you folks plan to use in the -- from

11

now on?

12

department so we go through the specific

13

departments, we're going to have to come back and

14

make the revisions in this area again.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Because un -- unless we buy into the

Before there's a response, Mr. Hokama, so --

16

just so we can get clear from the department, that

17

when they cite expansion positions for the

18

equipment, is it directly tied to the four

19

expansions

20

discussion, Mr. Hokama.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

and it's not to take away from your

Yeah, no, no.

Thank you for that.

It's to get clarity from the department.

23

When you folks cite on 11, 12 and 13, Section 9 of

24

the details, expansion positions -- and it's, you

25

know, several times throughout -- are -- is that the
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1

four expansion positions you folks are requesting

2

and this equipment is going to be utilized by them

3

to service the various departments that are

4

identified within the justification portion of the

5

budget details?

6

MR. REGAN:

Mr. Chair, if I may,

I -- I believe, if I

7

understand your question correctly, you're asking

8

whether or not this -- these requests for

9

expansion -- this request -- these requests for

10

computer equipment that would cover expansion

11

positions are -- are these requests related to the

12

four EPs that were -- we're requesting for MIS?

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

MR. VERKERKE:

That is the question.
It's

- Mr. Chair, it's been our practice

15

to put the funding for computer equipment for

16

expansion positions in all other departments in the

17

MIS budget because we can achieve economies of scale

18

in purchasing.

19

department turns out to be slightly higher than the

20

amount allocated, we can usually help out within the

21

flexibilities of our budget.

22

And if a particular need of a

So, if I understand you correct -- your

23

answer correctly, indeed, it has been our practice

24

and, to my knowledge, it will continue to be our

25

intent to place the funding associated with those
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1

positions approved in this process in the MIS

2

budget.

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

MR. VERKERKE:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So, the short answer is no.

I'm not sure if I understand the question.
Okay.

The question is is the expansion

6

equipment that's being cited at -- in the

7

justification portions on Page 11, 12 and 13 of

8

Section 9 -- and forgive me, yeah, Mr. Hokama, I'm

9

just -- again, I'm just trying to get from the

10

department.

11

On 9-11, Department of Corporation Counsel,

12

computer equipment, expansion positions, are these

13

pieces of equipment directly related to the four

14

expansions that you folks -- the personnel within

15

your department that's being requested?

16

And if not, then what I'd prefer

because

17

this shows a change

18

provide written response to your question,

19

Mr. Hokama, on our meeting that's coming up on

20

March 31st which we basically dedicated that time

21

for that type of discussion.

22
23

- that the department can

If you're prepared to respond, please.
MR. VERKERKE:

Indeed, I misunderstood your question.

24

listing here is not tied directly to the four

25

expansion positions we're talking about.
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1

to all the other expansion positions throughout the

2

County.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Mr. Hokama,

if -- if the Chair's

4

preference, again, would be to take that information

5

and have them be prepared to respond to the

6

questions in detail.

7

like to expound on the questions, please feel free.

8

We'll go ahead and forward it and make sure they can

9

respond.

10

Because, again,

If you have any -- if you'd

today the department under

11

the direction of -- of your Chair and the staff to

12

them was to be prepared to respond to the EP counts

13

for this afternoon specific to the department.

14

I'd like to provide them an opportunity to prepare

15

for responses that you may have to -- as questions.

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No,

So,

I -- I have no problems with

17

allowing the department to go and have the ability

18

to prepare the best response possible.

19

that I'm not used to to having department's requests

20

broken up and placed in different parts of the

21

budget under different jurisdictions.

22

It's just

You know, if it's a Fire request, one, and

23

they're asking for X position for this and this is

24

where it pays to support that position is one PC,

25

this, this,

this and this is the cost of this one
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1

expansion position,

2

works, Chairman.

3

Okay.

it's easier for how my brain

And, again, all of us work at

4

different levels.

5

ties in to this portion with the other department's

6

requests,

7

the various conclusions or decisions.

8
9

So,

Unless, you know, we find how it

it may not be that easy to corne up with

I -- one,

I wanted to ask that question;

but thank you for asking whether or not that four

10

expansion had any impact or connection to these

11

various department's requests.

12

I would say I am more than happy to hear from

13

Mr. Verkerke about economies of scale in purchasing.

14

And that is why we are part of the western region's

15

purchasing agreement as well as part of the -- as

16

part of NACO, we have the purchasing power of a

17

national organization through our corporate premier

18

members, whether it be the Dells or the IBMs or

19

others that -- because of their membership to our

20

organization provides us with economies of scale

21

purchases, whether it be in software or hardware.

22

I can wait then for the specific things

23

unless, Mr. Verkerke, you can tell us is there

24

something new in the type of software that you have

25

in this expansion things very quickly this
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afternoon?

2

MR. VERKERKE:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

MR. VERKERKE:

Mr. Chair?
Mr. Verkerke.
I believe that/ as proposed in the budget/

5

these would be standard -- County standard desktop

6

PCs with County standard desktop applications on it/

7

nothing out of the ordinary.

8

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

One quick one -- and/ again/ I

believe when Chairman Kane brings up Office of the

10

Mayor -- on Page 9-12 under Department of Parks you

11

have a PC system with an HR payroll

12

system/justification.

13

This has nothing to do with the HR payroll

14

system that we've paid big money for that I am

15

assuming is fully implemented and operating at this

16

time?

17

separate?

18

MR. VERKERKE:

That's part of it or this is something

I believe the -- the HR payroll system note

19

there is part of the justification of where that PC

20

is needed/ not because it's a part of the system;

21

but it allows Parks and Recreation staff out in

22

the

23

in the districts to access the system.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Well/ I'm glad that you

24

answered that question then -- that way then/

25

Mr. Verkerke.
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Okay.

1

2
3

Chairman, then I'm done for this

portion of the department's review.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

And I will reiterate to

4

Mr. Regan, if you can, please be prepared to respond

5

to the point that Mr. Hokama has pointed out for the

6

31st meeting.

7
8

9

Okay.

Thank you.
Ms. Anderson.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

I'm just

wondering if -- it seems that the GroupWise function

10

of MIS is down a lot lately and that there's

11

difficulty getting e-mails -- I mean, oftentimes

12

it's a day or, many times, days before an e-mail

13

that's been sent is received.

14

these vacancies have anything to do with that and if

15

these expansion positions will help cure that.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

MR. VERKERKE:

Okay.

And I'm wondering if

Question to you, Mr. Verkerke.

Mr. Chair, the vacancies that we have now,

18

indeed, would have something to do with that.

19

if we were able to successfully fill all those, we

20

would have enough staff to have somebody much more

21

focused on maintaining that system.

If--

22

Right now we're spread awfully thin.

23

part of the reason for the expansion positions in

24

the current budget under requests for more expansion

25

positions next year is to remedy the problem where

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

And

BF 3/24/05

181

1

we have a few people trying to maintain a lot of

2

diverse systems.

3

Under the vacancy that you see for LAN

4

support specifically in the Fiscal '05 budget, that

5

position would have a key role to play in making

6

sure that it's -- the system becomes more stable.

7

We had some problems with the GroupWise

8

system this last weekend that illustrates a point of

9

redundancy that the main person that is responsible

10

for supporting that happened to be at a conference

11

on the Mainland.

12

So, people that have peripheral knowledge of

13

the system scrambled to try and resolve it; and it

14

took a couple of days.

15

problem that we ran into.

16

This was actually an unusual

And so, with calling to the Mainland and

17

dealing with the time difference and trying to do as

18

much troubleshooting and going through a process of

19

elimination with not as much skill and knowledge as

20

we would like to have had caused it to take longer

21

than we would have liked.

22

So, we're an organization that -- that is, as

23

I said, stretched.

24

wide range of systems requiring a wide range of

25

skills.

We are expected to maintain a

And it's -- it's very difficult to ask
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1

always the same people to step up to the plate and

2

take on additional responsibilities.

3

So, I'm a little bit concerned with some of

4

the comments I've heard today that if you -- if you

5

can't fill them as quickly as you would like to this

6

year, maybe we don't need to quite provide all these

7

positions next year.
It -- it's a reflection of the variety of

8
9

skills and responsibilities that we have to be able

10

to perform and bring to the table here.

And a lot

11

of that will require in-house training.

So, the

12

longer we are kept from starting that in-house

13

training, the longer it will take us to perform the

14

support to all these decisions to the level that

15

everybody expects us to do.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson?

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

And thanks

18

for that.

I appreciate the honesty because, you

19

know, we -- we're a very large corporate entity

20

here.

21

depend on for communication, I believe, is very

22

critical in operating the business of this

23

corporation.

24

time-sensitive information that's being distributed

25

because, as you know, we have time deadlines all the

And the instant messaging service that we

And many times it's very
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time, critical time deadlines.

2

So,

I'm hoping, Mr. Chair,

that maybe we can

3

solve this problem so that it's not an ongoing

4

problem like it seems to be.

5

because the primary person is on vacation or,

6

rather, off island, we can find a way to have some

7

backup or support system so that, you know,

8

whole County's communication system doesn't sit at a

9

standstill because of some problem.

10
11

That's just my comment.
CHAIR KANE:

discussion, ma'am -- Members,

13

Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

the

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

12

14

And hopefully -- just

Any further

in this area?

Just one, Chairman.

And, again,

if

15

you feel this should be more when we do CIP or what,

16

my -- my question to the department and Mr. Verkerke

17

in particular is any of the four expansion requests

18

of your specific department impacts any of the CIP

19

requests or has an association with any of the CIP

20

requests?

21

MR. VERKERKE:

I'm not in a --

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I ' l l give you the -- I'll give you

23

the -- you have

you have

four EP requests of

24

our expansion.

25

there is a request for MIS improvements.

In the capital improvements budget
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that associated with your positions?
MR. VERKERKE:

Oh,

I'm sorry.

No, it's not.

The

3

improvements that we're asking for are strictly to

4

the facility,

As you can imagine, we've outgrown that

5

6

facility by many factors over the years.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

MR. VERKERKE:

9

the computer room itself.

Yeah, I --

And so, we need to fix that.

We need to

fix that.
But these people -

10

the expansion positions

11

that we're asking for are not tied into the effort

12

of improving it, nor would they be located in the

13

computer room.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

MR. VERKERKE:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

They would be responsible for staff.
And this was -- I wanted to know if

17

there's an association to CIP and expansion.

18

you.

19
20
21
22

Thank

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Mr. Hokama.

Any further questions or

discussion?
The Chair has one question for you,

23

Mr. Regan.

24

regarding the eight months for the funding portion

25

of your request -- and Member Tavares cited this

I know in your funding justification
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1

earlier regarding the -- and your comments are based

2

on historical experience.

3

The Chair's perception is that lately -- and

4

especially with the discussion that we had in the

5

fourth quarter on vacancy over 90 days and the

6

realization that we have a lot of ,vacancies, the

7

perception is, including some information given

8

today, that historical experience is changing in

9

that it's taking us longer to recruit.

10

And so, do we need to look at this?

Because

11

right now -- you know, the Chair's not going to be

12

ashamed to say it.

13

six months.

14

already are back as far as hiring for existing year.

15

You've been provided expansions -- I think last year

16

is one of the greatest expansion years of this

17

County's history.

18

behind in fulfilling those expansions and we're here

19

again talking about overall 58 more expansion

20

positions.

21

If it's six months, it should be

It's a date certain on hiring.

You

And you still have -- are far

Help me understand this historical

22

experience.

23

that, but right now it doesn't seem like what's

24

actually occurring doesn't -- is not consistent with

25

what you are stating.

And it seems simple to fall back on
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1

MR. REGAN:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MR. REGAN:

4
5

Thank you, Chair.
Can you provide comment?
Sure,

certainly.

I appreciate the opportunity

to provide comment on that.
This year's recruitment -- Department of

6

Personnel Services was extremely involved in the HR

7

payroll project and,

8

resources side of the project itself.

9

devoted a lot of their resources to ensuring that

in particular,

the human
And they

10

the HR pay -- their portion of the HR payroll

11

project moved forward in a timely manner.

12

So,

that really had an impact,

I feel,

on our

13

overall ability to move the process forward in a

14

in a more expedited manner to meet our historical

15

experience of about four months.

16

With that said,

they're -- they have

17

essentially reverted back to how they were operating

18

prior to taking on the HR payroll project with their

19

DPS staff that is assigned out to the various

20

departments.

21

So, with that said, I feel that, you know,

22

DPS -- I feel that our estimates are relatively

23

accurate based on their completion of their portion

24

of the HR payroll project.

25

So, I think the four months estimate is a
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1

reasonable one based on that, based on what has

2

happened in prior year's experiences.

3

really what I was perhaps talking more about when I

4

mentioned -- when I put that in this was that the

5

historical experience in eliminating this outlying

6

year which -- that's what this really was.

7

And that's

This is not something that's normal.

We do

8

not go about having an HR payroll project that sucks

9

up all the resources on an annual basis.

I mean,

10

this is something that, you know, happens once

11

perhaps every ten years or so.

12

I'm not sure.

But it was definitely an exception and not

13

the rule.

14

but that's why I'm saying in this funding

15

justification, that we feel that the four months is

16

a reasonable expectation.

17
18
19

And I would hope that that's the case;

I hope that answers your question, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Director.
Any further questions or comments?

The

20

Chair's intention, if there are no further questions

21

or comments, we can go ahead and adjourn for this

22

afternoon and start early on our long weekend and

23

getting into our Easter break, Members, and then

24

being ready to rock and roll Monday on the Island of

25

Molokai.
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1

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

I got one.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Thank you.

Your last comment,

5

Chair, was a pretty good one because when you look

6

at the total number of expansion that has been

7

requested and the moneys in regards to those

8

expansion and if we were to go, rather than eight,

9

to six or even four, you know, you're looking at a

10

savings probably $800,000.

11

dollars.

12

CHAIR KANE:

That's a quite a bit of

Yeah, on top of what hasn't been filled and

13

the moneys that were appropriated and that going

14

either to other uses in between the categories A, B

15

and C or being shown as carryover which you have a

16

healthy carryover being represented from last year

17

to this year.

18

So, any final comments, Members?

Hearing

19

none,

the Chair'S -- just some closing comments.

20

And I know Mr. Verkerke expressed his concerns about

21

comments made.

22

as a body looking at an overall budget of $400 plus

23

million and because we are in good times and we're

24

rolling in the dough, as some people may say, that

25

doesn't mean that we shy away from being fiscally

And so,

I'd just like to share that
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conservative in our approach to our budget.

2

So, we're merely asking the tough questions

3

and, I think, trying out scenarios of fiscal -- of

4

fiscal conservativeness so that we can show that

5

we're being responsible in our decisions.
So, again, it's not meant -- there's no

6

7

conclusions being drawn today.

8

to go.

9

give a fair review on each and every request that's

10

11

It's early.

We've got a long way

And I think each of us will

been made in this proposal.
So, Mr. Verkerke, I appreciate your comments.

12

And I think the body recognizes the importance to

13

your division of this request.

14

On a general note, Members, the Chair

15

appreciates your understanding in the Chair's

16

attempt to provide as much flexibility as possible

17

regarding the question -- the lines of questions

18

that are being asked.

19

folks provide the Chair with as much flexibility to

20

keep this process moving.

21

And I'd just ask that you

And if there are any concerns, then the Chair

22

would be more than happy to have a discussion with

23

you regarding any concerns regarding how we're

24

running the meetings; but, again, the attempt is to

25

keep moving forward.
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1

And with that, Members, the Chair is going to

2

thank Director Regan, Ms. Morrison, Budget Director.

3

Mr. Verkerke, thank you for being here.

4
5
6

Ms. Morrison, any further comments before we
close for the weekend and start up next week?
MS. MORRISON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Yes, I do have one

7

final comment; and that is root for the Red Raiders.

8

They're playing tonight and have a good weekend.

9

CHAIR KANE:

10

MS. MORRISON:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MS. MORRISON:

13

CHAIR KANE:

Who's that, Texas Tech?
Texas Tech.
Bobby Knight.
Except for him.
Except for him.

Sorry.

It's a package deal.

14

All right, Members, any -- again, any final

15

comments, Members, before the Chair adjourns?

16
17

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

(Excused:

RC)

18
19

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

Hearing none, thank you very much, Members,

22

for your participation.

23

Easter to all of you, and we'll see you Monday on

24

Molokai.

25

Have a safe weekend.

This meeting is adjourned.

(Gavel)
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1
2

C E R T I F I CAT E
STATE OF HAWAII
SS.

3
4

CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUl

5
6

I, Sharon L. Ross, Certified Shorthand

7

Reporter for the State of Hawaii, hereby certify

8

that the proceedings were taken down by me in

9

machine shorthand and was thereafter reduced to

10

typewritten form under my supervision; that the

11

foregoing represents to the best of my ability, a

12

true and correct transcript of the proceedings had

13

in the foregoing matter.

14

I further certify that I am not attorney for

15

any of the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned

16

with the cause.

17
18

DATED this 16th day of April, 2005, in
Honolulu, Hawaii.

19
20
21
22
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